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HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED 
NOTICE 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT 30'" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF THE MEMBERS 
OF HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED, WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 2021 AT 10.30 
A.M. (LS.T) THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING(“VC”)/ OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS 
(“OAVM”) TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS: 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 
31*' March, 2021 and the Reports of the Directors and Statutory Auditor thereon. 

2. Toappointa Director in place of Mr. Mahendra Thacker (DIN:01405253), who retires by rotation at this Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for Re-appointment. 

SPECTAL BUSINESS: 

Item No. 3: To approve increase in borrowing limits: 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and any other 
applicable laws and provisions of Articles of Association of the Company, consent of the members of the Company 
be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to borrow such sum of moneys from time to 
time by way of loans and / or issue of bonds, debentures, commercial papers or any other securities / debt 
instruments for the purpose of business of the Company, so that the moneys to be borrowed together with the 
moneys already borrowed by the Company (apart from the temporary loans obtained from the Company's bankers 
in the ordinary course of business) and outstanding at any point of time shall not exceed sum of Rs. 50 Crore 
(Rupees Fifty Crore Only)over & above the then existing paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company on 
such terms and conditions as it may deem fit.” 

  

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Mr. Mahendra Thacker (DIN — 01405253) and/or Mrs. Darshana Thacker 
(DIN — 02003242), Directors of the Company, be and are hereby, jointly and/or severally authorised to do such acts 
and deeds or to take or cause to be taken such steps or actions that are deemed necessary for giving effect to the 
aforesaid Resolution.” 

Item no. 4: To approve conversion of Loan into Equity Shares: 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 62 (3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rules made there under and in accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company and applicable regulations and subject to all such approval(s), consent(s), permission(s), sanction(s), if 
any, of appropriate statutory, governmental and other authorities and departments in this regard and subject to such 
condition(s) and modification(s) as may be prescribed or imposed, while granting such approval(s), consent(s), 
permission(s) or sanction(s), the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 
Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any 
committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board to exercise its powers including powers conferred by this 
resolution), on the terms and conditions contained in the financing documents, such terms and conditions to 
provide, inter alia, to convert the whole or part of the outstanding loans of the Company (whether disbursed on or 
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prior to or after the date of this resolution and whether then due or payable or not), (as already stipulated or as may 
be specified by the Financial Institutions / Banks and anybody corporate entity(ies) under the financing documents 
executed or to be executed in respect of the financial assistance which have already been availed or which may be 
availed) by the Company under the lending arrangements with various Banks, Financial Institutions and anybody 
corporate entity(ies), (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Lenders”), at the option of the Lenders, the loans 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Assistance”), into fully paid up equity shares of the Company with 
ordinary voting rights and/or differential voting rights on such terms and conditions as may be stipulated in the 
financing documents and subject to applicable law and in the manner specified in a notice in writing to be given by 
the Lenders (or their agents or trustees) to the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Notice of Conversion”) and 
in accordance with the following conditions: 

1. The conversion right reserved as aforesaid may be exercised by the Lenders on one or more occasions during the 
currency of the Financial Assistance; 

2. Onreceipt of the Notice of Conversion, the Company shall, subject to the provisions of the financing documents, 
allot and issue the requisite number of fully paid-up equity shares to the Lenders or any other person identified by 
the Lenders as from the date of conversion and the Lenders may accept the same in satisfaction of the part of the 
loans so converted; 

3 .The part of the loan so converted shall cease to carry interest as from the date of conversion and the loan shall 
stand correspondingly reduced. Upon such conversion, the repayment instalments of the loan payable after the 
date of conversion as per the financing documents shall stand reduced proportionately by the amounts of the loan 
so converted. The equity shares so allotted and issued to the Lenders or such other person identified by the 
Lenders shall carry, from the date of conversion, the right to receive proportionately the dividends and other 
distributions declared or to be declared in respect of the equity capital of the Company. Save as aforesaid, the said 
shares shall rank pari passu with the existing equity shares with ordinary voting rights and differential voting 
rights of the Company in all respects as the case may be; 

4. In the event that the Lenders exercise the conversion right as aforesaid, the Company shall at its cost get the 
equity shares with ordinary voting rights and differential voting rights as the case may be, issued to the Lenders 
or such other person identified by the Lenders as a result of the conversion, and list the shares in the Stock 
exchanges where Company's shares are presently listed and for the said purpose the Company shall take all such 
steps as may be necessary to ensure that the equity shares are listed in the Stock Exchanges; 

5. The loans shall be converted into equity shares with ordinary voting rights and/or differential voting rights as the 
case may be ata price to be determined in accordance with the applicable Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Regulations at the time of such conversion. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to finalise the terms and conditions for 
raising the Financial Assistance, from time to time, with an option to convert the Financial Assistance into equity 
shares of the Company any time during the currency of the Financial Assistance, on the terms specified in the 
financing documents, including upon happening of an event of default by the Company in terms of the loan 
arrangements. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to issue, offer and allot from time to time to 
the Lenders such number of equity shares for conversion of the outstanding portion of the loans as may be desired 
by the Lenders. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to accept such modifications and to accept 
such terms and conditions as may be imposed or required by the Lenders arising from or incidental to the aforesaid 
terms providing for such option and to do all such acts and things as may be necessary to give effect to this 
resolution. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board, be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper 
or desirable as may be required to create, offer, issue and allot the aforesaid shares, to dematerialize the shares of 

the Company and to resolve and settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard and to do all 
such other acts, deeds, matters and things in connection with or incidental thereto as the Board in its absolute 

discretion may deem fit, without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the members or 
otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval there to expressly by the 
authority of this resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby also authorized to delegate all or any of the powers 
herein conferred by this resolution on it, to any committee of Directors or any person or persons, as it may in its 
absolute discretion deem fit in order to give effect to this resolution.” 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee thereof) and / 
or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

Registered Office: 
2, Ground floor, 9, Dev Bhuvan, By Order of the Board 
Gazdar Street, Chira Bazar, Sd/- 
Kalbadevi, Mumbai — 400002. MAHENDRA THACKER 

CHAIRMAN 

Place: Mumbai DIN-01405253 

Date: 14.08.2021 
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NOTES: 

1. Inview of the Global Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate A ffairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular dated 
May 5, 2020 read with Circulars dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 and January 13, 2021 (collectively referred 
to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / OAVM, 
without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 
Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC /OAVM. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is 
being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been 
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the 
AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip including Route map are not annexed to this Notice. However, 
the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and 
participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting. 

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and up to 15 minutes after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The 
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first 
served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are 
allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

4. a) Explanatory Statement of the Special Business pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in 

respect of Item No.3 and 4 of the Notice is given in Annexure A of the Notice. 

b) The Information required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, with respect to the Director seeking re-appointment at the 
30™ Annual General Meeting in respect of Item No. 2 of the Notice are given in the Annexure B to the 
Notice. 

5. Procedure for joining the AGM through VC /OAVM: 
5.1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet. linkintime.co.in 

5.2. Select the “Company” and 'Event Date' and register with your following details: 

[A] Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No.: 

- Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
- Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 

Digit Client ID 
- Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with the Company 
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[B] PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their PAN with 
the Depository Participant (DP)/Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, ifapplicable. 

[C] Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number. 

[D] Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company. 

- Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the meeting). 

§.3. Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through 

InstaMeet: 

- Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 3 days in advance with the 
company on the specific email id created for the general meeting. 

- Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the client. 
- Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting. 
- Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting. 
- Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video mode 

and audio of your device. 

Note: Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the 

name and serial number for speaking. 

5.4. Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through 

InstaMeet: 

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ members 
who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under: 
- Onthe Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e- Voting “Cast your vote” 
- Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ 

registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on Submit’. 
- After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ Against” 

for voting. 
- Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares 

(which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under 'Favour/A gainst'. 
- After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on 

“Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to 
change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote. 

- Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote 
subsequently. 

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through Remote e- Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, 
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted 
through Remote e- Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual 
General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting. 

5.5. Shareholders/Members are encouraged to join the AGM through Laptops for better experience. 
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5.6. 

5.7. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

  

  

Further, Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download 
stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

Please note that Participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. Itis therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to 
instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175. 

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

In compliance with the aforesaid Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for the year 
2020-21 is being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with 
the Company or their Depository Participants. Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are 
requested to follow the process mentioned below, for registering their email addresses to receive login ID and 
password for e- Voting. 

In line with the MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 
2021, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
https://www.hotelrugby.co.in/ . The Notice can also be accessed from the website of BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com and the website of NSE India https://www.nseindia.com/ 

Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered their email addresses with the 
Company are requested to register their email addresses with the Company's Share Transfer Agent, Link 
In time India Pvt. Ltd., at https://linkintime.co.in/emailreg/email_register.html. Members holding shares in 
dematerialized mode are requested to register/update their email addresses with their Depository Participants. 

As mandated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) effective April 1, 2019, requests for 
effecting transfer of shares (except in case of transmission or transposition of shares) shall not be processed 
unless the shares are held in a dematerialized form with a depository. Members are advised to dematerialize 
shares held by them in physical mode. 

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 
Wednesday, 22™ September, 2021 to Wednesday, 29" September, 2021 (both days inclusive). 

The Members who will hold the shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form as on Wednesday, 
1" September, 2021 will receive the Notice of 30 AGM and Annual Report for the Financial Year ended 31" 
March, 2021. 

The Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited (“Link 
Intime”’) cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding shares in electronic form for 
any change of bank particulars or bank mandates or for change in their address. Such changes are to be advised 
only to the Depository Participant by the Members. Thus, Members holding shares in electronic form are 
hereby requested to inform immediately of any change in the Bank details or address to their Depository 
Participants. The Members holding shares in physical form and desirous of registering change in their address 
or bank details already registered against their respective folios are requested to write to the Company or to the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 
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15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

21. 

  

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their respective Depository Participants with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the 
Company or to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents. 

In view of the 'Green Initiative in Corporate Governance’ introduced by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide 
its Circular No 17/2011 dated 21.04.2011, all members who are holding shares of the Company in physical 
mode, are requested to register their e-mail IDs, so as to enable the Company to send all 
notices/reports/documents/intimations and other correspondence etc. through e-mails, in the electronic mode 
instead of receiving physical copies of the same. For registering your email ID, kindly send your email ID 
details to https://linkintime.co.in/emailreg/email_register.html/rughbyhotel@rediffmail.com. 

The Members holding shares in Demat mode, who have not registered their e-mail IDs with DPs, are requested 
to register/update their email [Ds with their DPs. 

All documents referred to in the Notice calling the AGM and the Explanatory Statement will be available 
electronically for inspection by the Members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. 
Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to 'rugbyhotel@rediffmail.com’. 

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of 
Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested maintained 
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 willbe available for inspection electronically by the members at 
the AGM. 

In case, of joint holders attending the AGM, only such joint holder who is higher in order of names will be 
entitled to vote. 

Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same 
order of names are requested to send the share certificates to Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, for 
consolidation into single folio. 

All queries relating to Share Transfer and allied subjects should be addressed to: 

M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited 
C101, 247 Park, LB S Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400 083. 

Tel No.: 022 49186000 

Procedure for Remote e-Voting and e-Voting during the AGM: 

21.1. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the 
MCA dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020 and January 13 ,2021, the Company is providing the 
facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this 
purpose, the Company has appointed M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. for facilitating voting through electronic 
means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using the remote e-voting system as 
well as e-voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd (LIIPL). 
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21.2. The instructions for remote e-voting and joining the AGM through VC/OAVM areas under: 

The remote e-voting period shall commence at 9:00 am on Saturday, September 25, 2021, and will end at 5:00 

pm on Tuesday, September 28, 2021. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by LITPL at 5:00 pm on 
September 28, 2021. 

21.3. Procedure: 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e- Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode can vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories 
and Depository Participants only post 9 June, 2021.Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and 
email Id in their demat accounts to access e-Voting facility. Login method for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode/ physical mode is given below: 

A. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL: 
-If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is 
available under '[DeAS' section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. 

-After successful authentication, you will be able to see e- Voting services. Click on “Access to e- Voting” under e- 
Voting services and you will be able to see e- Voting page. 
Click on company name or e- Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e- Voting service provider 
website for casting your vote during the remote e- Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 
-If the user is not registered for [DeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. 
Select “Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/Secure Web/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

-Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e- Voting 
system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. Anew screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e- Voting page. Click on company name or e- Voting service 
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e- Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

B. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL: 

-Existing user of who have opted for Easi/ Easiest, they can login through their user id and password. Option will be 
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / 
Easiest are https://veb.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System 
Myeasi. 

-After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links 
of e- Voting service provider i.e. NSDL, KARVY, LINK INTIME, CDSL. Click on e- Voting service provider name 

to cast your vote. 
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-If the user is not registered for Easi / Easiest, option to register is available at https://web.cdslindia.com /myeasi./ 
Registration/EasiRegistration. 

- Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account Number and PAN No. froma link 
in www.cdslindia.com homepage. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email 
as recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP 
where the E Voting is in progress. 

C. Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat mode) & login through their depository participants: 

-You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered 
with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

-Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company 
name or e- Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e- Voting service provider website for casting your 
vote during the remote e- Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

D. Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode & evoting service Provider is LINKINTIME. 

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

Those who are first time users of Link Intime India Pvt Ltd (LIIPL) e-voting platform or holding shares in 

physical mode have to mandatorily generate their own Password, as under: 

> Click on “Sign Up” under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and register with your following details: - 

A. User ID: Enter your User ID 

® Shareholders/members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

® Shareholders/members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed 
by 8 Digit Client ID 

® Shareholders/members holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio Number registered 
with the Company 

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their PAN with the 
Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, ifapplicable. 

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOD (As recorded with your DP / Company - in 

DD/MM/YYYY format) 

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your DP/Company. 

® Shareholders/members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide either 'C' or 'D', above 

® Shareholders/members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 'D', above 

® Shareholders/members holding shares in physical form but have not recorded 'C' and 'D', shall provide their Folio 
number in 'D' above 
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> Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special 
Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter). 

> Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated). 

NOTE: If Shareholders/members are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e- Voting system of 
LUPL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then they can use their 
existing password to login. 

2. Click on 'Login' under 'SHARE HOLDER ' tab. 
3.Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on Submit". 
4. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select 'View' icon. 
5. E-voting page will appear. 
6. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / Against' (If you 
wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the 'View Resolution’ file link). 
7. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box will be displayed. 
If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 'Yes', else to change your vote, click on 'No' and accordingly modify your 
vote. 

8. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the e- 
voting system of LIIPL at https://instavote. linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / 
Corporate Body'. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority 
letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in 
PDF format in the ‘Custodian /Mutual Fund/ Corporate Body' login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode & evoting service Provider is LINKINTIME, 
have forgotten the password: 

o Click on 'Login‘ under 'SHARE HOLDER ' tab and further Click ‘forgot password ?' 
o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on 'Submit'. 

* Incase shareholders/ members is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 
address. 

® Shareholders/ members can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the particulars 
of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOL, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned 
above. 

® The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@!#$&*), at least one 
numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL have forgotten the password: 

® Shareholders/ members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants website. 

Y — Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. 

“For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice. 

“ During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the 
resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in demat mode have any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. NSDL/CDSL, they may contact the respective helpdesk given below: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL-Members facing any technical issue in login 
can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 
1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL-Members facing any technical issue in login 
can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 
or 22-23058542-43. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders & evoting 
service Provider is LINKINTIME. 

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders have any queries 
regarding e-voting, they may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs') and InstaVote e- Voting manual 
available at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or send an email to enotices@linkintime.co.in or 
contact on: - Tel: 022 —4918 6000. 

22. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to the shares held by them on the paid up equity share 
capital of the Company as on cut-off date being, Wednesday, 22°¢ September, 2021. A person whose name is 
recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on 
cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of Remote e-voting or voting at the AGM through ballot 
paper. 

23. Mr. Sudeshkumar V. Joshi, Proprietor of Sudeshkumar & Associates, Chartered Accountant (Membership No. 
043678) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process and E voting at AGM 
Process ina fair and transparent manner. 

24. The Scrutinizer shall immediately after conclusion of the AGM shall first count the votes cast through e-voting 
at AGM and thereafter shall unblock the votes cast through Remote E-Voting in presence of at least two 
witnesses (who shall not be in employment of the Company). The scrutinizer shall submit his report not later 
than 2 working days from the conclusion of the AGM to the Chairman or to a person authorized by him in 
writing who shall countersign the same and declare the results. 

25. The result declared by Chairman or by a person authorized by him in writing along with the Scrutinizers' 
Report shall be immediately placed on the website of the Company 1.¢. www.hotelrugby.in and on the website 
of LIIPL https://instavote.linkintime.co.in after the declaration of results. The result shall also be 
communicated to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

26. The resolutions listed in the Notice of 30" AGM shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM, subject 
to the receipt of the requisite number of votes in favour of the respective resolutions. 

27. SEBL, vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73 dated 20" April 2018, has directed all the 
listed companies to record the PAN and Bank Account details of holders holdings securities in physical form. 
Accordingly, the shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to submit a copy of their PAN and 

  

  

  

13



Hotel Rugby Limited 30° Annual Report 
  ee     

    

    

  

bank details along with a cancelled cheque to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company at the earliest. 
Separate letters have been sent to the security holders of the Company holding securities in physical form as per the 
said Circular. 

Further, in view of amendments to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 
vide SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated 8 June 2018 as amended, effective from Ist 
April, 2019, requests for effecting transfer of shares of the Company shall not be processed unless the shares are 
held in the dematerialized form with a depository, except in case of transmission or transposition of shares. 
Accordingly, the shareholders of the Company holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialise the 
shares held by them at the earliest. Separate letters are also being sent to the shareholders holding shares in physical 
form in this connection. 

28. Members desiring any information as regards the accounts and operations of the Company are requested to 
write to the Company at least 7 days in advance so that the information sought can be made readily available at the 
Meeting. 

ANNEXURE-A 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

Item No.3-To approve increase in borrowing limits: 

Considering the Company's existing and future financial requirements and to support its business operations, the 
Company may need additional funds. For this purpose, the Company may, from time to time, raise finance from 
various Banks and/or Financial Institutions and/ or any other lending institutions and/or Bodies Corporate and/or 
such other persons as may be considered fit by way of loans, bonds, debentures, commercial papers, any other 
securities or debt instruments which, together with the moneys already borrowed by the Company (apart from 
temporary loans obtained from the Company's bankers in ordinary course of business) shall not exceed sum of Rs. 
50 Crores (Rupees Fifty Crores Only) over & above the then existing paid up share capital and free reserves of the 
Company. 

Pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors cannot borrow more than the 
aggregate amount of the paid-up capital of the Company and its free reserves at any one time except with the 
consent of the members of the Company in a general meeting. Accordingly, approval of the members of the 
Company is sought by way ofa Special Resolution. 

The Board recommends the Resolution at Item No. 3 for your approval as a Special Resolution. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned with or interested, 
financially or otherwise in the resolution. 

Item No. 4-To approve conversion of Loaninto Equity Shares: 

In line with the regulatory changes in the recent past, the changes in the Companies Act and in line with various 
directives issued by Reserve Bank of India, from time to time, and in pursuance of the financing documents of the 
Company, the Company is required to pass a Special Resolution under Section 62 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
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and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under to enable the Banks and 
Financial Institutions (hereinafter referred to as the “Lenders”) to convert the outstanding debt or any other 
financial assistance categorized as debt (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Assistance”), in foreign currency 
or Indian Rupee, already availed or to be availed from the Lenders or as may be availed from the Lenders, from 
time to time, at their option, into equity shares with ordinary voting rights and differential voting rights of the 
Company as the case may be upon such terms and conditions as may be deemed appropriate by the Board and at a 
price to be determined in accordance with the applicable laws at the time of such conversion. 

Section 62 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, provides that nothing in Section 62 shall apply to the increase of the 
subscribed capital of a Company caused by the exercise of an option as a term attached to the debentures issued or 
loan raised by the company to convert such debentures or loans into shares in the Company; provided that the terms 
of issue of such debentures or loan containing such an option have been approved before the issue of such 
debentures or the raising of loan by a special resolution passed by the company in General Meeting. 

Pursuant to Section 180 (1) (a) and 180 (1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company 
also recommends to borrow any sum or sums of monies (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company's 
Bankers in the ordinary course of business), from time to time, in such form and manner and on such terms and 
conditions as the Board may deem fit. For the purposes of such Borrowings, the Company may, from time to time, 
be required to execute financing documents, which provides for an enabling option to the Lenders, to convert the 
whole or any part of such outstanding Financial Assistance (comprising loans, debentures or any other financial 
assistance categorized as loans), into fully paid up equity shares with ordinary voting rights and differential voting 
rights of the Company as the case may be. 

Accordingly, the Board of Director recommends the resolution as set forth in the item no. 4 of the Notice, to enable 
the Lenders, in terms of the lending arrangements, entered/to be entered and as may be specified by the 
Banks/Financial Institutions and anybody corporate entity(ies) under the financing documents already executed 
or to be executed in respect of the Financial Assistance availed/ to be availed, at their option, to convert the whole 
or part of their respective outstanding Financial Assistance into equity shares with ordinary voting rights and 
differential voting rights of the Company as the case may be, upon such terms and conditions as may be deemed 
appropriate by the Board and at a price to be determined in accordance with the applicable Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Regulations at the time of such conversion. 

The Company hereby clarifies that this resolution is merely an enabling resolution and there are no proposals of 
conversion of loan into equity shares with voting rights and equity shares with differential voting rights, either 
pending or envisaged currently. Therefore, the Board of Directors recommends the Resolution set out at Item No. 4 
of the accompanying Notice for approval of the Members of the Company as a Special Resolution. 

None of other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice. 
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ANNEXURE-B 

A BRIEF PROFILE AND INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR BEING REAPPOINTED: 

  

Name of Director Mr. Mahendra Thacker 
  

  

  

  

Date of Birth 21/08/1942 

Date of Appointment 19/10/1991 

No. of Shares Held 34,800 

Age 79 years 
  

Qualification (s) and in 

Specific Functional Areas 

Experience Commerce Graduate & Diploma in Hotel 

Management. Also having Good exposure in 

the field of Hotel & Tourism. 
  

Directorship held in other Companies 

including Companies in corporated outside 

India 

Rugby Foods and Bewerages Private Limited 

Crystal Hospitality Services Private Limited 

Thackers Holdings Private Limited 

  

Membership/ Chairmanship of all 

Companies in which they are Directors 

Hotel Rugby Limited 

  

Terms & Conditions of Appointment/ 
Reappointment 

Executive Director & CEO of the Company, 

liable to retire by rotation. 
  

Details of remuneration sought to be paid 
and the remuneration last drawn by such 
person, if applicable 

Not Applicable 

  

Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly 
withother Directors, Manager and other 

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

Spouse of Mrs. Darshana Thacker , Director 

of the Company 

    No. of Board Meeting attended during the 
year   4 out of 4 Board Meetings 

  

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 14.08.2021 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/- 

MAHENDRA THACKER 

CHAIRMAN 

DIN-01405253 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 2020-21 
Dear Members, 

The Board of Directors of the Company take pleasure in presenting the 30" Annual Report along with the Audited 
Accounts for the Financial Year ended 3 1*t March, 2021. 

1. Financial Results of the Company 
The Financial performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2021, is summarized 
below: - 

(Rs. in Lacs) 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          

2020-21 2019-20 

Gross Income 11.84 12.90 

Profit/ (Loss) Before Interest, Depreciation & Tax (5.44) (9.47) 

Finance Cost and Bank Interest 0.00 0.00 

Depreciation -- - 

Profit/ (Loss) Before Exceptional Items & Tax (5.44) (9.47) 

Add:- Exceptional Income -- -- 
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (5.44) (9.47) 

Less:- Provision for Taxation -- -- 
Net Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (5.44) (9.47) 

Excess/(short) Income Tax Provision of Earlier Years -- -- 

Net Profit/ (Loss) for the year (5.44) (9.47) 

Adj. relating to earlier year 0.80 1.73 

Profit/ (Loss) Brought Forward (3700.40) (3692.66) 

Profit/(Loss) Available for Appropriation (3705.05) (3700.40) 
  

2. Transfer to Reserves: 
In view of inadequate profits during the year and due to accumulated losses of earlier years, the Company had not 
transferred any amount to the Reserves. 

3. Operations: 
The Company has not carried out any Business activities during the year. Your Directors are considering various 
avenues & options for the activities to be undertaken. The Company has earned the income by way of Interest on 
Fixed deposits, Interest on Income Tax refund, Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits, Sundry Credit Balances 
written back and Profit on sale of units of Mutual Funds. 

4. Dividend: 
Due to loss during the year and carried forward of accumulated losses of earlier years, your Directors do not 
recommend any dividend for the financial year under review. 
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5. Public Deposit: 
The Company has neither invited nor accepted any Public Deposit within the meaning of the Section 73 and Section 
76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made framed there under, during the year under review. There are no 
unpaid and unclaimed deposits at the end of Financial Year 2020-21. The borrowing from Directors during the year 
was to the extent of Rs.17,40,000. Further, in respect of amount borrowed from Directors, the Company received a 

declaration that the said amount was not given by him out of borrowed funds. 

6. Subsidiaries, Associate and Joint Venture Companies: 
The Company does not have Subsidiary, Associate and Joint Venture Companies. 

7. Website Link of Annual Return of the Company: 
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Annual Return is available on 
Company's website on https://www. hotelrugby.co.in/Default.aspx?PageID=3 & ReportCatID=1001 

8. Number of meetings of the Board/Committees of Board: 

During the Financial Year 2020-21, Four(4) Board Meetings were convened and held (excluding meeting of 
Independent Directors). The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All the 
Directors have attended all the Board Meetings held during the year under review. 
In addition to the above and as required under Schedule [V to the Companies Act, 2013 1(One) Separate Meeting of 
Independent Directors was held on 24.03.2021. 

The Board of Directors has constituted four committees namely — Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, Stakeholders' Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee which enables 
the Board to deal with specific areas/activities that need a closer review and to have an appropriate structure to assist 
in the discharge of their responsibilities. The details of the composition of the Audit Committee, Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and their respective terms of reference are 
included in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report. The Board Committees meet at 
regular intervals and ensure to perform the duties and functions as entrusted upon them by the Board. 
The details of the Board meetings held during the year and that of Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are also set out in the Corporate Governance Report forming 
part of the Annual Report. 

9. Details about Directors and KMPs who were Appointed/Resigned during the Financial Year: 
During the year under review, there is Change in the Constitution of the Board which is mentioned as under : 
1. On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee the Shareholders at their 29th Annual 
General Meeting held on 29 September, 2020 approved the appointment of Mr. Rajesh Shantilal Parikh as Director 
and Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years with effect from September 30, 2020. 

2. Further, also on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of 

the Company the Shareholders at its 29° Annual General Meeting held on 29 September, 2020 approved the 
appointment of Mr. Sanjay Kapur as the Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a period of five 
consecutive years from September 30, 2020, to September 29, 2025. 

Further, i.t.0. KMPs following changes have occurred during the year:- 
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-Ms. Gauri Gokhale, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company had resigned w.e.f. 13% 
August, 2020, on account of personal reasons. 

Further on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee , the Board of Directors at their 

meeting held on 5'* November 2020 had appointed of Ms. Somya Kasliwal (ACS 55086) as the Company 
Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. 5° November 2020. 

Directors: 
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Mahendra Thacker (DIN:01405253), 
Director & CFO of the Company retires by rotation and offers himself for re-appointment. 

11. AStatement on declaration given by Independent Directors: 

12. 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 
(e) 

(f) 

13. 

14. 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of Independence as laid down 
pursuant to Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and read with the relevant Schedule and Rules issued 
there under and the Listing Regulations. 
None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified for being appointed as Directors as specified in Section 
164(2) of the Companies Act and Rule 14(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014. 

Directors Responsibility Statement: 
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, 
your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 

that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as on 31 March, 2021 and of the loss for that period; 

The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 
The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively and 
The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

Auditors: 
M/s B. M. Gattani & Co. (FRN — 113635W), Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, were appointed as the Statutory 
Auditor of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) years i.e. from the conclusion of 28" AGM held on 27" 
September, 2019 till the conclusion of 337 AGM at a remuneration to be determined by the Board of Directors 
of the Company. 

Internal Auditors, Internal Control System and their Adequacy: 
Pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Rules framed thereunder, M/s. 
M. H. Dalal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration Number — 112449W) were 
appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-21. The Internal Auditors are 
required to report to the Audit Committee of the Board after conducting comprehensive audit of operations of 
the Company. 
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In order to attain the corporate objectives, strict internal controls systems were implemented across the 
organisation. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control 
environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations on regular basis. The audit function 
maintains its independence and objectivity while carrying out assignments. It evaluates on a continuous basis, 
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control mechanism. The function also proactively recommends 
improvement in policies and processes, suggests streamlining of controls against various risks. Your Company 
has laid down set of standards, processes and structure, which enables it to implement internal financial control 
across the Company and ensure that the same are adequate and operating effectively. 

Policies on appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes, independence ofa Director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178: 

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules framed there under and as amended from time to 
time. The policy shall apply to all Directors (Executive, Non Executive & Independent), Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management. The Policy laid down the roles of the Committee, criterion for appointment 
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management and parameters for determining the 
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees. 

Whistle Blower Policy: 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 (9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 22 and 46(2)(e) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the 
Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, which provides for a vigil mechanism that encourages and 
supports its Directors/Committee Members and employees to report instances of unethical be haviour, actual 
or potential fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or Ethics policy. It also provides for adequate 
safeguards against victimization of persons who use this mechanism and direct access to the Chairperson of the 
Audit Committee in exceptional cases. 

Corporate Social Responsibility: 
Though the provisions of Section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under regarding 
Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company, the Company has constituted the 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as per the requirement of Companies Act, 2013, which 
consists of Mr. Mahendra Thacker (Executive Director), Mrs. Darshana Thacker (Non-Executive Director) 
and Mr. Ashok Kadakia (Independent Director). The Company believes that Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) is 'the continuing commitment for improving the quality of life of the society at large’. 

Reservation and qualification on Auditor Report: 
Regarding qualification made by the Auditors in their Report on Note no. 20 of Accounts w.r.t. Going Concern 
Concept, we state as under: 

The Company is having liquid funds and is looking for some good avenue of business. The Company has 
invested most of its liquid funds on short term basis so that funds can be available whenever required. 
The other qualifications, if any made in the Auditor's Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for 
any further comments. 
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22. 

23. 

24, 

25. 

  

Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors pursuant to section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 

2013: 
During the year under review, there were no incidences of fraud reported by Auditors. 

Secretarial Audit report given by Company Secretary in practice: 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed 
M/s. Sindhu Nair & Associates, Company Secretaries, Mumbai, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the 

Company. The Report of the Secretarial Audit is annexed as Annexure - I to this Report. 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report: 
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report is attached herewith as Annexure-II to the Directors’ 
Report. 

Disclosures relating to Loans, Guarantees or Investments made by company under Section 186: 

During the year under review, the Company had not given any Loans and Guarantees. The details of 
Investments made by the Company, as covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
are duly mentioned in the Notes to Accounts forming the part of Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 
31 March, 2021. 

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 
188: 
There were no Related Party Transactions during the year under review. The Policy on dealing with related 
party is available on the website of the Company i.e. www.hotelrugby.co.in 

Corporate Governance Report: 
Pursuant to Regulations 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations 
2015, a separate section titled 'Report on Corporate Governance’ (as per Annexure — III)’ forms part of this 
Annual Report. 

The Report on Corporate Governance also includes certain disclosures that are required, as per Companies Act, 
2013. Auditors’ Certificate confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated 
under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 also forms part of this 
Annual Report. 

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company which have 
occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the company to which the financial statements relate 
and the date of the report: 

In terms of the information required under Sub-section (3)(1) of Section 134 it is to be noted that there are no 
material Changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company have occurred between the 
end of the Financial Year of the company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report. 

. Conservation of energy & technology absorption and Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 
Since the Company does not carry any manufacturing activities, particulars to be disclosed with respect to 
Conservation of energy & technology absorption under Section 134 (3) (m) of Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not applicable. 
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During the year under review, there has been no earnings and outgo in foreign exchange. 

Disclosures about annual performance evaluation by the Directors of the Company of its own and 
committees and Individual Directors 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of 
Directors including Independent Directors, Board of Directors and Committees of the Board. The criteria 
for performance evaluation covers the areas relevant to their functioning as independent directors or other 
directors, member of Board or Committees of the Board. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

reviewed the results of the annual performance evaluation of Independent Directors and expressed overall 
satisfaction on the performance of the Independent Directors, Non-Independent Directors, Chairman and 
the Board as a whole (including its Committees). 

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting 
the going concern status and company's operations in future: 
There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would 
impact the going concern status and the Company's future operations. 

Information in terms of under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel Rules, 2014 ): 
The information pertaining to Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel Rules, 2014) is given as below: 

(i) the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the Employees of the 
company for the Financial Year is not required to be mentioned as there were no employees in the 
Company during the year under review; 

(i) the details w.rt. the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial 
Year is not required to be given, as there were no employees in the Company during the year under 
review; 

(ii) there were no permanent employees during the year under review; 
(iv) the details w.rt. average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile increase in 
the managerial remuneration and justification thereof, is not required to be given as there were no 
employees in the previous financial year and during the year under review and no managerial 
remuneration was paid; 

(v) the details w.r.t. the key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the 
Directors is not required to be given as no remuneration was paid to the Directors; 

(vi) the details w.r.t. affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company, 
is notrequired to be given as there were no employees and no remuneration was paid to Directors. 

Further, During the year under review there were no employees in the Company drawing Remuneration 
over and above the limit specified pursuant to Rule 5 sub rule (2) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel Rules, 2014 ) 

Risk Management: 
Your Company recognizes that risk is an integral part of business and is committed to managing the risks in 
a proactive and efficient manner. There are no risks which in the opinion of the Board affect the Company 
operations on going concern basis. 

The Board periodically reviews the risks and measures are taken for mitigation. 

  
  
  

22



Hotel Rugby Limited 30" Annual Report 
      
    

  

31. 

32. 

33. 

34. 

35. 

36. 

  

  

Maintenance of Cost Records: 
During the year under review the Company was not required to maintain the Cost records as specified by 
the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Prevention of Sexual Harassment: 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy on 

prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the 

Sexual harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules 

framed thereunder. No complaints were received during the year under the said policy. Further, as there is 

no employee employed, the Company has not constituted Internal Complaints Committee as referred in 

the said Act for the year ended 31“ March, 2021. However, necessary steps will be taken by the Board for 

complying with provisions of the said Act. 

Details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016: 

During the year under review there was no application made or pending proceeding under the Insolvency 

and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

Details of difference between amount of valuation done at the time of One Time Settlement and 

valuation done while taking Loan from Banks or Financial Institutions(FIs): 

During the year under review the company has neither made any one time settlement nor have taken any 

loan from the Bank or FI. 

Declaration Under Secretarial Standards: 

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards viz. SS-1 and SS-2 during the year. 

Acknowledgment: 

The Directors gratefully acknowledge all stakeholders of the Company viz. Members and banks for the 

excellent support received from them during the year. The Directors place on record their sincere 

appreciation to all employees of the Company for their unstinted commitment and continued contribution 

to the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/- 
Place : Mumbai MAHENDRATHACKER 

Date :14/08/2021 CHAIRMAN 

DIN-01405253 
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Annexure - I 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For The Financial Year Ended 31* March 2021 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED 

Mumbai 

CIN: L55101MH1991PLC063265 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit of the Company, I hereby report that in my 
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31% March, 2021 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to the provisions of: 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;; 

il. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 

ili. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings - Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; 
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v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act'’):- 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009/The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 / The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 

Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (effective from October 28, 2014) - Not applicable to the 

Company during the Audit Period; 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 

- Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - Not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period and 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 - Not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; 

Ihave also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i. Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS- 

2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 

il. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and National Stock 

Exchange of India Limited under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations and Guidelines, as mentioned above except the following regulations of SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015: 
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1) Regulation 17(1A): Non-compliance in the matter of continuing the appointment of Mrs. Darshana Thacker who 
had attained the age of 75 years on June 8, 2020, as the non-executive Director of the Company. 

The Company had passed special resolution on September 29, 2020 in the said matter, thus complied with the said 
regulation and also had made the necessary representations to the NSE. 

2) Regulation 17(1)(c): Non-compliance with the requirement pertaining to the composition of the Board of 
Directors for the quarter ended June 30, 2020 and September 30, 2020. The Company was falling under Top 2000 
listed entities on the NSE and therefore was required to have minimum 6 Directors on the Board. Due to the said non- 
compliance, the NSE had levied penalty of Rs. 5,36,900/- on the Company for each quarter. 

The Company had appointed two more Directors on September 30, 2020 and paid the aforesaid penalty levied on April 
17,2021. 

I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is now duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- 
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors / Committees 
thereof, if any, that took place during the period under review, were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act. 

Based on the representation given by the Management of the Company and as verified by us, it is observed that there are 
no such laws which are specifically applicable to the industry in which the Company operates. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decisions of the Board are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of 
Directors. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure I and forms an integral part of this 
Report. 

Further we have to state that we have not carried out the physical inspection of any records maintained by the Company 
due to prevailing lock down conditions owing to COVID 2019 in Mumbai, Maharashtra. We have relied on the records as 
made available by the Company by digital mode and also on the Management Representation Letter issued by the 
Company. 

For SINDHU NAIR & ASSOCIATES 
sd/- 

SINDHU GNAIR 
Practising Company Secretary 

Proprietor 

(FCS- 7938, CP-8046) 

Date :10-08-2021 

Place: Mumbai 

UDIN:F007938C000759678 
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Annexure I 

The Members, 

HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED 

Mumbai 

CIN: L55101MH1991PLC063265 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. 

2. 

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 

ensure that the correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the practices and processes I 

followed provide areasonable basis for my opinion. 
I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Account of the 

company. 

Wherever required, I have obtained management representation about the compliance of laws, rules, 

regulations, norms and standards and happening of events. 

The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

norms is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure 

on test basis. 

The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

[have reported, in my audit report, only that non-compliance, especially in respect of filing of applicable 

forms/documents, which, in my opinion, are material and having major bearing on financials of the 

Company. 

For SINDHU NAIR & ASSOCIATES 

sd/- 

(SINDHU G NATR) 
Practising Company Secretary 
Proprietor 

(FCS — 7938, CP-8046) 

Date: 10-08-2021 

Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure - IT 

Management Discussions & Analysis 

The Company's assessment performance for the year ended 31.03.2021 and the outlook for the current year 

are based on the current environment and business situation. However, unforeseen circumstances and those 

arising from external factors could affect the performance and the results. 

(i) Industry Structure and Business Overview: 

The Company is not earning from its main business activities. However, the Company is earning Income 

from Interest on Fixed Deposits, Income Tax refund Inter-Corporate Deposits & profit on sale of Mutual 

Funds etc. The Company is looking for new Business avenues. 

(ii) Opportunities and Threats: 

The Company is earning good amount of Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits. As on date, the Company is 

not earning from its main business activities and as such looking out for new Business avenues. However, 
there is no time limit to get good business avenues. 

(iii) Risk Management: 

In the absence of any Foreign Transactions, the monitoring and corrective actions carried out by the 
Company are in accordance with the size of the business. 

(iv) Segment-wise Performance: 

Since the last five years, there is no business segment except Company earning other income. 

(v) Financial & Operational Performance: 

The Board is considering various options for revival of business, either for Joint Venture or strategic 

partnership with suitable partner in the business of the Company. Meanwhile, the Company has invested its 

surplus funds in Fixed Deposits, Equity Shares, Inter-Corporate Deposits and Mutual Funds. 

(vi) Internal Control Systems : 

The Company has laid down set of standards, processes and structure, which enables it to implement 
internal financial control across the Company and ensure that the same are adequate and operating 

effectively. 

Comprehensive internal audit is also carried out by an independent internal auditor to ensure Compliance 

and identify weaknesses in the system. 
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(viii) Human Resources & Industrial Relation 

The industrial relations continued to be harmonious and cordial providing an atmosphere conducive to 

sustenance of growth and enhancement of value for shareholders. However, there are no employees in the 
Company. 

(ix) Health and Safety: 

Adequate safety measures have been taken at all the places of Business. 

(x) There is no significant change in ratio of Return on Networth at the end of the year. 

(xi) Conclusion: 

The Company is hopeful to break through into new business and is looking various avenues for the same. 

(xii) Cautionary Statement: 

Some of the statements contained within this report may be forward looking in nature within the meaning of 

applicable securities laws and regulations and may involve risks and uncertainties. Actual Result and 

Outcomes in future may vary materially from those discussed herein. Factors that may cause such variances 

include, but are not limited to management of growth, risk associated with new product version, 

dependence on third party relationship, activities of competitors and changes in the government 

regulations, tax laws and other statues and other incidental factors. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/- 
Place: Mumbai MAHENDRA THACKER 

Date: 14.08.2021 CHAIRMAN 

DIN-01405253 
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ANNEXURE - II 
Corporate Governance 

Corporate Governance 

Pursuant to Regulations 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations 2015 
a Report on Corporate Governance is given below: 

1. Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance: 

The Company is committed to maintain highest level of Corporate Governance with transparency and 
corporate accountability in its actions and operations and to become a good corporate citizen. 

Corporate Governance is the combination of voluntary practices and compliance with laws and regulations 
leading to effective control and management of the organization. It brings into focus the fiduciary and 
trusteeship role of the Board to align and direct the activities of the organization keeping in mind the 
interests of shareholders and the society. 

2. Board of Directors: 
(a) As on 31.03.2021, the Board consisted of Two Executive Directors, Four Non-Executive Directors 

including Three Independent Directors. Thus, the Board comprises of Executive and Non Executive 
Directors (including Independent Directors). 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Name of Directors Category No. of outside Directorship and Committee 
Membership in domestic public companies. # 

Other Directorships Committee 

Memberships 

As a | As a | As a | As a 

Member | Chairman | Member | Chairman 

Mr. Mahendra R. Thacker Executive Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Mrs. Darshana M. Thacker Non-Executive Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Mr. Ashok M. Kadakia Non-Executive 5 1 3 1 
Independent 

Mr. Dinesh L. Patel Non-Executive 1 0 Nil Nil 
Independent 

Mr. Sanjay Kapur Non-Executive Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Independent 

Mr. Rajesh S. Parikh Executive Nil Nil Nil Nil                 

# Excludes Directorship and Committee Membership of Private Limited Companies. 

NOTES: 
(a) Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting 

The Board of the Company met four times during the year for the meetings held on 29/07/2020 , 03/09/2020, 
04/11/2020 and 10/02/2021.All Directors except Mr. Sanjay Kapur & Mr. Rajesh Parikh were present at all the 
Board Meetings. As Mr. Sanjay Kapur & Mr. Rajesh Parikh were appointed as Directors w.e.f. 30.09.2020, they 
attended all Board Meeting held after their appointment. 
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The attendance at the Board Meetings and the Last Annual General Meeting (29.09.2020) were as under: 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Name of the Director Business Attendance 

relationship with | Board AGM 
the Company Meeting 

Mr. Mahendra R. Thacker Promoter 4 Yes 

Mts. Darshana M. Thacker Promoter 4 Yes 

Mr. Ashok M. Kadakia None 4 Yes 

Mr. Dinesh L Patel None 4 No 

Mr. Sanjay Kapur None 2 NA 
(appointed w.e.f 30.09.2020) 

Mr. Rajesh Parikh CFO and Wholetime | 2 NA 

(appointed w.e.f 30.09.2020) Director           
  

(b) Code of Conduct: 
The Board has formulated a Code of Conduct for the Board Members and Senior Management of the 

Company and placed on the website of the Company. All the Members of the Board have affirmed the 

Compliance with the Code on annual basis. 

Familiarization programme to Independent Directors: 

During the year, Familiarization programme is imparted to the Independent Directors of the Company and 

is available on the website of the Company 1.e. www. hotelrugby.co.in. 

Inter-se Relations between the Board of Directors: 

Mr. Mahendra R. Thacker and Mrs. Darshana M. Thacker are Spouses. Other Directors are not related to 

each other. 

Shares held by Non-executive Directors as at 31.03.2021: 
  

  

  

  

          

Sr. Name of the Director No. of shares held 

No. 

1. Mrs.Darshana Thacker 33,84,052 

2. Mr. Ashok Kadakia 1,000 

3. Mr. Dinesh Patel 0 

4. Mr. Sanjay Kapur 3,311 
  

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and are independent of the management. 

Core skills/ expertise/ competencies of Board of Directors: 

The core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board for the effective functioning of the 
Company and the names of the Directors having the said skills/expertise/competencies in the context of the 

Company's business are given below: 
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YN 

RUGB 

Area of expertise 

Director Marketing General Financial Legal Expertise 

Management Competency 

Mr. Mahendra Thacker v v v v 

Mrs. Darshana Thacker v v 

Mr. Ashok Kadakia v v v 

Mr. Dinesh Patel v v 

Mr. Sanjay Kapur v v v 

Mr. Rajesh Parikh v v v v 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

I. Audit Committee: 

a. TheAudit Committee is consisting of following Directors: 

Name Designation Nor-executive / Independent 
Mr. Ashok M, Kadakia Chairman Independent 

Mr. Mahendra Thacker | Member Executive 

Mr. Dinesh L. Patel Member Independent 

b. During the year under review,4 (Four) meetings were held on 29.07.2020, 03.09.2020, 

04.11.2020 and 10.02.2021 at which all the members of the Committee were present. 

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee: 

The Role of Audit Committee shall include the following: 

1. Oversight of the company’s Financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 

to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 

Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or 

removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees. 

Approval of payment to statutory auditor for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors. 

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval, with particular reference to: 

Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's 

report in term of clause (c) of sub-section(3) of Section134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Changes, ifany, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management. 

Significant adjustments made in the financial statement arising out of audit findings. 

Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 
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10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

  

  

f} Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

g) Qualification in the draft audit report. 

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval. 

Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory auditors and internal auditors, monitoring 

Auditors’ independence, adequacy of the internal control systems. 

To evaluate internal financial controls. 

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 

and frequency of internal audit. 

Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon. 

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 

the matter to the board. 

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in repayment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

To review vigil mechanism as defined under Whistle Blower Policy. 

To obtain professional advice from external sources as and when required and to have full access to 
information contained in the records of the Company. 

To review and formulate the scope and functioning of Internal Audit in consultation with the Internal 

Auditors. 

To approve the appointment of CFO (1.e. the whole time finance director or any other person heading 

the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background etc. of the candidate. 

To approve or any other subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties. 

To scrutinize inter corporate loans and investments. 

To consider valuations of assets or undertaking of the Company, wherever it 1s necessary. 
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21. To monitor the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters. 

22. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 
Any other functions as may be stipulated by the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI, Stock Exchanges or 

any other regulatory authorities from time to time. 

Review of Information by Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 

  

  

  

            

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and result of operations; 

2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by 
management; 

3. Management letters/letters of internal control weakness issued by the statutory auditors; 

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weakness; and 

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject 

to review by the Audit Committee. 
6. Statement of deviations: 

a. quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 

submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1). 
b. annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 

document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). 

I. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

a. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is consisting of following Directors: 

Name of Directors Designation Norrexecutive/ Independent 
Mr. Ashok M. Kadakia Chairman Independent 

Mr. Dinesh L. Patel Member Independent 

Mrs. Darshana Thacker Member Non-Executive 

b. Remuneration of Directors: 

Details of remuneration paid to Directors for the year ended 31 March, 2021 are as follows: 

Name of the Directors | Salary &/| Sitting Fees) Commission Total | No. of 
perquisites Shares 

held 

Mr. Mahendra R. Thacker | Nil Nil Nil Nil 34800 
Mrs. Darshana M. Thacker | Nil Nil Nil Nil 3384052 
Mr. Ashok M. Kadakia Nil Nil Nil Nil 1000 
Mr. Dinesh L. Patel Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Mr. Sanjay Kapur Nil Nil Nil Nil 3311 

Mr. Rajesh Parikh Nil Nil Nil Nil 7769                 

In view of carried forward losses, none of the Directors were paid any fees/remuneration during the 
year. 
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During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 1 (One) time on 

03.09.2020 at which all the members of the Committee were present. The Committee had laid down the 

criteria for the evaluation of the performance of Directors and formulated the Remuneration Policy. 

The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes the following : 

To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and/or who may be appointed as Senior 
Management just below the level of Executive Directors in accordance with the criteria laid down and 

to recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. 

To formulate the criteria for evaluation and evaluate the performance of every Director, including the 

Independent Director. 

To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
Director; 

To recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel and other Employees; 

To formulate the criteria for evaluation of the Independent Directors and the Board; 

To devise a policy on Board diversity; 

To recommend to the Board, remuneration payable to Senior Management; 

Any other functions as may be mandated by the Board or stipulated by the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI, 

Stock Exchanges or any other regulatory authorities from time to time. 

. Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 

The Stakeholder and Relationship Committee is consisting of following Directors: 
  

  

  

  

Name of Director Designation Nor-executive/ Independent 
Mr. Ashok M. Kadakia Chairman Independent 

Mr. Mahendra Thacker Member Executive 

Mrs. Darshana Thacker Member Non-Executive         
  

During the Year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committeemet 4 (Four) times on 

29.07.2020,03.09.2020, 04.11.2020 and 10.02.2021at which all the members of the Committee were 

present. 

Ms. Gauri Gokhale, Company Secretary of the Company was Compliance Officer upto 13" August, 

2020 and thereafter Ms. Somya Kasliwal was appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance 

Officer of the Company w.e.f 5“ November, 2020. 

No. of Shareholders complaints recetved— NIL 

No. of Complaints solved to the satisfaction of shareholders — NIL 

No. of Complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders — NIL 

No. of pending Complaints — NIL 
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3. General Body Meetings : 

  

  

Annual 

General 

Meeting 

(AGM) 

Date Time ‘Venue Special Resolution .- 

passed 

  

27% AGM 28% 
September, 
2018 

10.30 a.m. Maharashtra Chambers of 

Commerce Trust, 6" Floor, Oricon 
House, Maharashtra Chambers of 

Commerce Path, Fort, Mumbai — 
400 001. 

Continuance of 
Directorship of Mr. 
Ashok Kadakia on 
attaining the age of 
76 years with effect 
from 1% April, 2019 
to 30" September, 
2019. 

Continuance of 
Directorship of Mr. 
Mahendra Thacker on 
attaining the age of 
75 years with effect 
from 1% April, 2019, 
liable to retire by 
rotation. 

  

28" AGM 27 
September, 
2019 

10.30 a.m. Maharashtra Chambers of 

Commerce Trust, 6" Floor, Kasliwal 
House, Maharashtra Chambers of 

Commerce Path, Fort, Mumbai — 
400 001. 

Appointment of Mr. 
Dinesh Patel as an 
Independent Director 
of the Company for a 
second term of 5 
consecutive years 
with effect from 1” 
October, 2019 to 30% 
September, 2024. 

Appointment of Mr. 
Ashok Kadakiaas an 
Independent Director 
of the Company for a 
second term of 5 
consecutive years 
with effect from 1° 
October, 2019 to 30% 
September, 2024. 

  

29% AGM     29th 
September, 
2020   10.30 a.m.   Through Video Conferencing 

(“VC”) Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”)   Approval for continuation 

of appointment of 
Mrs. Darshana Thacker 
as the Non Executive 
Director with effect from 
8% June, 2020 on attaining 
the age of 75 years.   

  

During the year under review, no Resolutions were passed through Postal Ballot. 
No Special Resolutions on matters requiring Postal Ballot are placed for Shareholders’ approval at the 
30"AGM. 
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4. Disclosures: 

Related Party Transactions: 

No transaction of material nature has been entered into by the Company with Directors or Management and 
their relatives, etc. that may have a potential conflict with interest of the Company. 

Details of non—Compliance by the Company: 
During the year, there has been no instance of non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to 
capital markets. 
There were no other penalties or strictures being imposed by SEB] or The Stock Exchanges during the year. 

Whistle Blower Policy: 
The Company has adopted the Whistle Blower Policy. The Company does not deny access to any personnel 
to approach Audit Committee on any issue. 

All the recommendations of the various Committees of the Board were accepted by the Board. 

Details relating to fees paid to the Statutory Auditors are given in Note no. 10 forming part of the financial 
statements. 

In the year 2020-21 no case of sexual harassment of women was filed under the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

5. Means of Communication 

1. Whether half yearly report : No. As the quarterly results of the Company are 
sent to Share holders published in Newspapers. 

Newspapers in which Quarterly : L. Business Standard (English) 
Results are Published 2. Mumbai Lakshadeep (Marathi) 

Website if any at which results > www.hotelrugby.co.in 
are published 

The presentation made to : Nopresentation has been made to 
Institutional investors or to institutional investors or to the 
the Analysts analysts. 

Press release : No press releases have been issued by the Company 

6. General Shareholder Information: 

i) Annual General Meeting 
Date and Time : 29 September 2021 at 10:30am 
Venue Through Video Conference/Other Audio Visual Means. 

ii) Financial Year : 1* April, 2020 to 31“ March, 2021 
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lit) Book Closure Date 

iv) Dividend Payment Date 

v) Listing on Stock Exchange 

vi) Stock Code 

vii) Payment of Listing Fees 

viii) ISIN 

a 30" Annual Report 
  

  

  

  

> 22.09.2021 to 29.09.2021 (both days inclusive) 

: NotApplicable 

: National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (E) Mumbai - 400 051. 
BSE Ltd. 

PhirozeJeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, 

Mumbai-400 001. 

: National Stock Exchange -HOTEL RUGBY 
BSE Ltd—-526683 

: BSE-Paid upto Financial Year 2021-22 
NSE- Paid upto Financial Year 2021-22 

: INE275F01019 

ix) Market Price Data: High, Low during each month in last Financial Year 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          

As per BSE As per NSE BSE Sensex 
Months High Low High Low High Low 

(2020-21) 

April 2020 0.85 0.85 1.05 1.00 33,887.25 27,500.79 

May 2020 0.85 0.85 1.00 0.90 32,845.48 29,968.45 
June 2020 1.06 0.85 1.80 0.90 35,706.55 32,348.10 

July 2020 1,33 1,05 1.95 0.95 38,617.03 34,927.20 

August 1.20 1.05 1.85 1.05 40,010.17 36,911.23 
2020 

September 1.62 1.26 1.80 1.35 39,359.51 36,495.98 
2020 

October 1.73 1.14 1.80 1.45 41,048.05 38,410.20 
2020 

November 1.38 1.13 1.40 1.20 44,825.37 39,334.92 
2020 

December 1.50 1.13 1.35 1.20 47,896.97 44,118.10 

2020 
January 1.49 1.16 1.35 1.15 50,184.01 46,160.46 
2021 

February 1.26 1.14 1.30 1.15 52,516.76 46,433.65 
2021 

March 1.38 1.14 1.30 1.05 51,821.84 48,236.35 
2021           
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x) Registrar & Transferagents : M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited 
C101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West), 

Mumbai 400 083 
Tel No. : 022 49186000 

x1) Share Transfer System: In terms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities 
can be transferred only in dematerialized form w.e.f. April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for 
transmission or transposition of securities. 

xii) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31‘ March, 2021 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

              

Slab of No of % to Total No. of % to 
Shareholding Shareholders No. of Shares Held Total 
No of Equity Shareholders Shares 
Shares held 

1-500 7251 83.585 1297775 9.0609 

501 — 1000 621 7.1585 534493 3.7318 

1001— 2000 334 3.8501 519509 3.6271 

2001 — 3000 124 1.4294 315983 2.2062 

3001 — 4000 55 0.634 199894 1.3956 

4001 — 5000 51 0.5879 241881 1.6888 

5001 — 10000 90 1.0375 677376 4.7294 

10001 onwards 149 1.7176 10535889 73.5603 

Total 8675 100.0000 14322800 100.0000 
  

Categories of Shareholders as on 31 March, 2021. 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

            

Categories Number of Shares Amount (in Rs.) % 

Promoters, Relatives of 

Promoters & Associated 3927952 39279520 27.4245 

Companies 

Clearing Member 10217 102170 0.0713 

Other Bodies Corporate 419418 4194180 2.9283 
Nationalised Banks 700 7000 0.0049 

Non Nationalised Banks 1800 18000 0.0126 

Foreign Holdings 178104 1781040 1.2435 

Directors (other then 14080 140800 0.0983 
Promoters) and their relatives 
Public (Individual & HUF) 9770529 97705290 68.2166 

Total 14322800 143228000 | 100.0000 
  

xiii) Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity: 

The Company has established connectivity with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Security (India) Limited (CDSL) and Equity Shares of the Company are available for 
dematerialisation with effect from 26" March, 2002. As on 31 March, 2021, 93.27% of the Company's Share 

Capital is dematerialized. 
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xiv) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants :  Thereareno outstanding convertible warrants or 
instruments or any convertible instruments 

xv) Plant locations (Resort) > NIL 

xvi) Address for Correspondence : Registered Office: 

2, Ground floor, 9, Dev Bhuvan, Gazdar Street, 

Chira Bazar, Kalbadevi, 
Mumbai — 400002. 

RTA‘s Address: 

M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited 

C 101,247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West), 

Mumbai 400 083. 

Tel No. : 022 49186000 

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
(CFO) OFTHE COMPANY 

The CEO and CFO Certification of the Financial Statements and Cash Flow Statement for the year are obtained. 

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT: 

DECLARATION 

I, Mahendra R. Thacker, Director and CEO of Hotel Rugby Limited, hereby declare that all the members of the 
Board of Directors and the Senior Managerial personnel have affirmed Compliance with the Code of Conduct, 
applicable to them as laid down by the Board of Directors in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulations 2015, for the year ended 31.03.2021. 

For HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED 

Sd/- 

Place : Mumbai MAHENDRA THACKER 

Date :14.08.2021 CHAIRMAN& CEO 

DIN:01405253 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Members of 

HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED 

2, Ground Floor, 9, Dev Bhuvan Gazdar Street, 

Chirabazar, Kalbadevi, Mumbai — 400 002 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED having CIN L55101MH1991PLC063265 and having registered office at 2, Ground 
Floor, 9, Dev Bhuvan Gazdar Street, Chirabazar, Kalbadevi, Mumbai — 400 002,(hereinafter referred to as 'the 
Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with 
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 
Company and its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 
the Financial Year ending on 318t March, 2021, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
or any such other Statutory Authority. 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in 

the Company 

1 Ashok Manilal Kadakia 00317237 15/11/1993 
(Director) 

2 Mahendra Ramanlal Thacker 01405253 19/10/1991 
(Director) 

Sanjay Vijay Kapur 01582246 30/09/2020 
(Director) 

Darshana Mahendra Thacker 02003242 16/09/1991 
(Director) 

Dinesh Lalbhai Patel (Director) 06439238 31/01/2014 

Rajesh Shantilal Parikh 08864184 30/09/2020 
(Wholetime Director)             

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For SINDHU NAIR & ASSOCIATES 
Sd/- 

(SINDHU G NAIR) 
Practicing Company secretary 

Proprietor 
(FCS- 7938, CP- 8046) 
UDIN:F007938C000760107 

Place: Mumbai 

Date:10-8-2021 
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CERTIFICATE OF THE AUDITORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To the Members, 

HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED, 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED 
for the year ended on 31°! March 2021, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 

46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements )Regulations, 2015(the Listing Regulations). 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our 
examination has been limited to review of the procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the 
Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said 

Regulations. It is neither an audit nor an expression of the opinion on the financial statements of the 

Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the 

representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with 

the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

As required by the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, we have to state 

that no investor grievances are pending for a period of one month against the Company as per the records 

maintained by the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

AS per our report of even date. 

For BM Gattani & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Sd/- 

Balmukund N Gattani 

(Proprietor) 

Membership No. 47066 

UDIN: 21047066AAAAFOQI1514 

Place : Mumbai 

Dated : 14/08/2021 
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Audit Report 

To the Members of 

Hotel Rugby Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hotel Rugby Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the balance sheet as at 3 15' March 2021, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects 
of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 318‘ March 2021, and loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

a. We are unable to verify the non current investment amounting to Rs. 4,00,000 and the valuation thereof as 

the supporting evidences for the same has not been produced for our verification. 
These investments in Equity Instruments are taken at cost and not valued at Fair Value through profit or loss 
or fair value through comprehensive Income as required by Ind AS 109 (Refer Note 1) 

b. The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis and all the property, plant and equipment of the 
company have been disposed offlong back and company is exploring to new business areas. (Refer Note 20) 

We conducted the audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the 
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming ouropinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 

Description of Key Audit Matter 
A. Non Current Investments 
The Company has made non current investments in equity shares of certain co-operative banks which have been 
stated at cost in the financial statements. The key audit matter in the above investments was value at which these are 
recognized in the financial statements and whether the same is as per the requirements of IND AS 109.(Refer note 
1.1) 
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How the matter was addressed in the audit 

The audit procedures included: 

— Identification: 
For the purpose of identification, we sought the share certificates for the investments made in each of the equity 
shares stated at an aggregate cost of Rs. 400,000 in the financial statements. This evidence was required for 
identification of investments made. 

— Controls: 
The ownership control of the investments could be ascertained if the invested shares were in the custody of the 
management. The production of these investments could establish the control of the management on the above 
investments. 

—Completeness and accuracy of the value at which stated: 

The equity investments are required to be valued at fair value in accordance with IND AS 109. To ascertain the same, 
the financial statements of the investee entities as at 318! March 2021 were sought for the purpose of valuation. 
Alternative, valuation report of a valuer could establish the completeness and accuracy in the valuation of the 
investments in above equity shares. 

As the financial statements of the investee entities were not made available, nor alternative valuation for the 

correctness of the investment value at which these are stated, our opinion is qualified in this respect. 

Description of Key Audit Matter 

B. Current Investments 

The Company has made current investments in debt oriented mutual funds which have been stated at cost in the 
financial statements. The key audit matter in the above investments was value at which these are recognised in the 
financial statements and whether the same is as per the requirements of IND AS 109. (Refer note 3. 1). 

How the matter was addressed in the audit 

The audit procedures included: 

— Identification: 
For the purpose of identification, We have sought the depository statement / statement of mutual funds for the 
investments made in each of the mutual funds and the transactions statement for purchase and sell of the investments 
stated at aggregate value of 15,175/-in the financial statements. This evidence was required for identification of 
investments made/disposed off during the year. 

— Controls: 
The ownership control of the investments could be ascertained if the invested mutual funds were in the custody of 
the management. The production of the investments by way of depository statements (holding and transactions 
both,) could establish the control of the management on the above investments. 

—Completeness and accuracy of the value at which stated: 

The mutual fund investments are required to be valued at fair value in accordance with IND AS 109. To ascertain the 
same, the no. of units at the year end and the net asset value for each of the mutual funds were sought. 

The relevant information in respect of the investments made/disposed off and the valuation as at 31*' March 2021 
was made available and the same was found to be correct to our satisfaction. 

  

  

  

44



Hotel Rugby Limited 30° Annual Report 
      
    

    

  

C. Other Current Assets 
The company has given mobilization advance of Rs. 2,88,50,000 (net of provisions) for taking certain project, 
which had been outstanding for a long time and the audit matter was whether the same is recoverable, considering 
no progress on the project and the prevailing market conditions. (Refer note 5.2) 

How the matter was addressed in the audit 

The audit procedures included: 

We made the enquiries from the management with regard to the probability of commencing the project or recovery 
of the amount from the party. 

The management informed that there is every possibility of recovery and negotiation is on, however a possibility of 
loss in the credit cannot be ruled out and considering the possibility of this, 50% provision has already been made 
for doubtful advances. 

D. Going Concern assumption 
The Company operates only in one segment i.e. Hotels and substantial assets of the same was disposed off to settle 
one time settlement dues of banker who had attached the properties and took possession of the same. Thus the 
company is not carrying the hotel business, and till it explores other business avenues, the assumption of going 
concern was an issue of concern. (Refer note 20) 

How the matter was addressed in the audit 

The audit procedures included: 

We made the enquiries from the management with regard to the going concern assumption and the reasons for 
preparation of financial statements, despite being no hotel properties to carry on the hotel business. 

The management informed that the company now intends to go for diversified allied business apart from the 
hospitality activities and a mobilization advance is also given in this respect. 

Other Information 
The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is no material misstatement of other information, which we are required to report 
and we have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, 
profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company, in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under section 133 of the Act. The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error which have been used for the preparation of the financial statements by the Directors of the Company, as 
aforesaid. 

In preparing the financial statements, the management and Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for 
assessing the ability of the company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors of the Company 
is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the company. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit, we also: 

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation 

of financial statement and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude, 

that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 

disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 

fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 

we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 

matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2.(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, that: 

a) wehave sought and obtained all the information and explanations (except as stated above in the para on 

basis for qualified opinion) which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 

statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement 

with the relevant books of account. 
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d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of 
the Act except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our 
report. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 318' March 202 1and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors of the Company is disqualified as on 
31“ March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, no remuneration is paid by the Company to its directors 
during the year to be reported is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 

i. The company does not have any pending litigations as at 315! March 2021 having impact on the financial 
position in its financial statement. 

ii. The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are 
any material foreseeable losses. 

iil. There has been no amount due to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company. 

As per our report of even date. 

For B M Gattani & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Sd/- 

Balmukund N Gattani 

(Proprietor) 

Membership No. 47066 

UDIN.: 21047066AAAAEJ9353 

Place : Mumbai 

Dated : 29th June 2021 
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ANNEXURE “A” OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph | under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 

our report of even date) 

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the financial 

statements for the year ended 3 1*' March 2021. We report that: 

(a) 

(b) 

The Company does not have any fixed assets. Therefore clause 3 (i)(a), 3(1)(b) and 3(1)(c) of the Order are 
not applicable to the company. 

The Company is not dealing in any goods and therefore there is no inventory held by the company. 

Therefore Clause 3 (11)(a) and 3 (ii) (b) of the Order are not applicable to the company. 

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, LLP or other parties 

covered in the registers maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, Clause 

3 (aii)(a), 3G11)(b) and 3(i11) (c) of the Order are not applicable to the company. 

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to me, the Company has complied 

with provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, investments, guarantees 

and securities, as applicable. 

The company has not accepted any deposits covered under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of 
India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules 

framed thereunder. No order has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law 

Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal to be complied by the company. 

As per the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not specified 
maintenance of cost records under sec 148 (1) of Companies Act, 2013 for the company. Accordingly, 

Clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us: 

the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues with the appropriate authorities 

including income tax and there are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the 

financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable. The 

Company is not liable for Provident fund, Employees State Insurance fund, value added tax, goods and 
service tax, cess or any other statutory dues. 

there are no dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value 

added tax or goods and service tax which have not been deposited on account of any disputes. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not taken 

any loans from any financial institution, banks, government or issued any debentures. Therefore, Clause 
3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 
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9. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has neither 

raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer nor taken any term loans from 

them. Therefore, Clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

10. As per the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or on the company by its 

officers and employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

11. As per the information and explanations given to us, no managerial remuneration has been paid by the 

company during the year. Therefore, Clause 3 (xi) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

12. Jn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a 

Nidhi Company and therefore, Clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

13. As per the information and explanations given to us, all transaction with the related party is in 

compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details 

have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standard. 

14. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 

made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 

debentures during the year under review. Therefore, Clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the 
company. 

15. Jn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 

entered into any non-cash transaction with a director or any person concerned with him. Therefore, 

Clause 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to the company. 

16. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company's financial 

assets are not more than 50 per cent ofits total assets (netted off by intangible assets, ifany), though the 

income from financial assets is more than 50 per cent of the gross income. Since the company does not 

fulfill both the conditions, the company 1s not required to be registered under Section 45 IA of Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. 

As per our report of even date. 
For B M Gattani & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Sd/- 
Balmukund N Gattani 

(Proprietor) 

UDIN: 21047066AAAAEJ9353 

Membership No. 47066 

Place : Mumbai 

Dated: 29th June 2021 
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(Referred to in paragraph 2.(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
our report of even date) 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Hotel Rugby Limited 
(“the Company”) as at 318! March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
the company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”). 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the 
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to the financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements were established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to the financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements 
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
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prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 3 15' March, 2021, based 
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Report issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

As pet our report of even date. 

For BM Gattani & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Sd/- 

Balmukund N Gattani 

(Proprietor) 

Membership No. 47066 
UDIN: 21047066AAAAEJ9353 

Place : Mumbai 

Dated: 29" June 2021 
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HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2021 

(in Rupees) 

Particulars Note As at As at 
No. 31/03/2021 31/03/2020 

ASSETS 

(1) Non-current assets 

(a) Financial Assets 

(@ Investments 1 4,00,000 4,00,000 

(ii) Loans 2 1,89,06,000 1,89,06,000 

(2) Current assets 

(a) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 3 15,175 30,067 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 4 1,76,916 67,092 

(b) Others Current Assets 5 4,16,95,523 4,05,75,524 

Total Assets 6,11,93,614 5,99,78,68 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

(a) Equity Share capital 6A 14,32,28,000 14,32,28,000 

(b) Other Equity 6B (8,49,44,179) (8,44,79,817) 

LIABILITIES 

(1) Non-current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 7 24,90,000 7,50,000 

(2) Current liabilities 

Other current liabilities 8 4,19,793 4,80,500 

Total Equity and Liabilities 6,11,93,614 5,99,78,68 

Significant accounting policies and Notes to accounts 1-29 

ee M Gettan mea For & on behalf of the board of directors 

Chartered Accountants 

sd/- sd/- sd/- 

Balmukund N Gattani Mahendra R Thacker Darshana M Thacker 

(Proprietor) (Director & CEO) (Director) 

Membership No. 47066 DIN : 01405253 DIN : 02003242 

UDIN No. 21047066AAAAEJ93 53 
sd/- sd/- 

Rajesh Parikh Somya Kasliwal 

(Director & CFO) (Company Secretary) 

DIN: 08864184 Membership No. ACS 55086 

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai 

Dated : 29th June 2021 Dated : 29‘? June 2021     
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HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March,2021 
  

(in Rupees) 
  

Particulars Note No 
Year ended 

31/03/2021 

Year ended 

31/03/2020 
  

  

Revenue From Operations 
  

II Other Income 11,83,651 12,90,130 
  

Total Income (Ill) 11,83,651 12,90,130 
  

IV EXPENSES 
  

Employee benefits expense 10 1,57,333 
  

Other expenses 11 15,70,681 22,37,195 
  

Total expenses (IV) 17,28,014 22,37,195 
  

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (I- IV) (5,44,363) (9,47,065) 
  

VI Exceptional Items 
  

Vil Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI) (5,44,363) (9,47,065) 
  

VII Tax expense: 
  

(1) Current tax - Tax for earlier years 
  

(2) Deferred tax 
  

Total Tax expense 
  

Profit (Loss) for the year from continuing operations 
(VII- VIII) (5,44,363) (9,47,065) 
  

Profit/(oss) from discontinued operations 
  

XI Tax expense of discontinued operations 
  

XII Profit/(oss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) (X-XT) 
  

Xill Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XIl} (5,44,363) (9,47,065) 
  

XIV Other Comprehensive Income 
  

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
  

(1i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 

profit or loss 
  

B () Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
  

(1i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 

profit or loss 
  

Other Comprehensive Income (A+B) 
  

XV 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period, (XIII+XIV) 

Comprising profit/(loss) and other comprehensive income 
(5,44,363) (9,47,065) 

  

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations): 16 
  

(1) Basic (0.0380) (0.0661) 
  

(2) Diluted (0.0380) (0.0661) 
  

XVII Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operations): 
    (1) Basic 
    (2) Diluted       
  

  

  

  

54 

 



Hotel Rugby Limited 30° Annual Report 
    

    

    

  

  

  

  

  

XVIII sporatien pe equity share(for continuing and discontinued 16 

(1) Basic (0.0380) (0.0661) 

(2) Diluted (0.0380) (0.0661) 

Significant accounting policies and Notes to accounts 1-29         
  

As per our report of even date 

For B M Gattani & Co. 
For & on behalf of the board of directors 

Chartered Accountants 

sd/- sd/- sd/- 

Balmukund N Gattani Mahendra R Thacker Darshana M Thacker 

(Proprietor) (Director & CEO) (Director) 

Membership No. 47066 DIN : 01405253 DIN : 02003242 

UDIN No. 21047066AAAAEJ93 53 
sd/- sd/- 

Rajesh Parikh Somya Kasliwal 

(Director & CFO) (Company Secretary) 

DIN: 08864184 Membership No. ACS 55086 

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai 

Dated : 29'h June 2021 Dated : 29th June 2021     
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31% March, 2021 

A. Equity Share Capital 

  

  

  

  

(In Rupees) 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 

Balance in the beginning of the reporting period 14,32,28,000 14,32,28,000 

Changes in equity share capital during the year - - 

Balance at the end of the reporting period 14,32,28,000 14,32,28,000 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

            
  

  

B. Other Equity (In Rupees) 

Reserves and Surplus 

Retained Earnings 
Particulars a Total 

Capital Reserve Securities General Reserve (Surplusi(Loss) as 
Premium per Profit & Loss 

Statement) 

As at 01-04-2019 10,00,00,466 17,70,58,200 85,01,839 (36,92,66,427) (8,37,05,922) 

Profit /(Loss) for the year (9,47,065) (9,47,065) 

AddiLess : Adjustments relating to earlier taxes 1,73,170 1,73,170 

Balance at the end of the reporting period 10,00,00,466 17,70,58,200 85,01,839 (37,00,40,322) (8,44,79,817) 

As at 01-04-2020 10,00,00,466 17,70,58,200 85,01,839 (37,00,40,321) (8,44,79,816) 

Profit /(Loss) for the year (5,44,363) (5,44,363) 

AddiLess : Adjustments relating to earlier taxes 80,000 80,000 

Balance at the end of the reporting period 10,00,00,466 17,70,58,200 85,01,839 (37,05,04,684) (8,49,44,179) 

Significant accounting policies and Notes to accounts 1-29 
  

As per our report of even date 

For B M Gattani & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

sd/- 

Balmukund N Gattani 

(Proprietor) 

Membership No. 47066 

UDIN No. 21047066AAAAEJ93 53 

Place : Mumbai 

Dated : 29th June 2021   
For & on behalf of the board of directors 

sd/- 

Mahendra R Thacker 
(Director & CEO) 

DIN : 01405253 

sd/- 
Rajesh Parikh 

(Director & CFO) 

DIN: 08864184 

Place : Mumbai 

Dated : 29t June 2021 

sd/- 

Darshana M Thacker 

(Director) 

DIN : 02003242 

sd/- 
Somya Kasliwal 

(Company Secretary) 

Membership No. ACS 55086   
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HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021 
(In Rupees 

; Year ended Year ended 
Particulars 31/03/2021 31/03/2020 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

Net Profit (Loss) before Tax (5,44,363) (9,47,065) 

Adjustment for 

Net gain on sale of investments (3,636) (157,428) 

Interest Income (11,24,927) (11,32,702) 

Sundry Creditors Written Back (55,087) - 

Operating Profit before Working capital changes (17,28,013) (22,37,195) 

Adjustments for: 

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans (Non Current) - - 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets - - 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (5,620) 1,15,122 

Cash Inflow /(Out Flow) from Operations (17,33,633) (21,22,073) 

Tax paid /(Refund received) (Net) 80,000 1,73,170 

Net Cash Inflow /(Out Flow) from Operation (A) (16,53,633) (19,48,903) 

Cash Flow from Investing Activities: 

Sale/(Purchase) of Investments (Net) 18,529 17,57,664 

Interest income 4,928 9,634 

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from investing Activities (B) 23,457 17,67,298 

Cash Flow from Financing Activities: 

Increase /(repayment) of Borrowings(Non Current) 17,40,000 - 

Net Cash Inflow /(Out Flow) from Financing Activities (C) 17,40,000 - 

Net Increase/Decrease in cash & Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,09,824 (1,81,605) 

Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 67,092 2,48,697 

Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,76,916 67,092   
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D. Reconcialiation of Cash & Cash Equivalents: 
  

Balance as per Cash Flow Statement 1,76,916 67,092 
  

Cash & Cash Equivalents (as per note 4 to Accounts)       1,76,916 67,092 
  

  

Note: 1. Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” as 

specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
  

2. The previous year figures have been re-grouped/rearranged and / or reclassified wherver considered necessary. 
    
  

As per our report of even date 

For B M Gattani & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

sd/- 

Balmukund N Gattani 

(Proprietor) 

Membership No. 47066 

UDIN No. 21047066AAAAEJ9353 

Place : Mumbai 

Dated : 29h June 2021   
For & on behalf of the board of directors 

sd/- 

Mahendra R Thacker 

(Director & CEO) 

DIN : 01405253 

sd/- 
Rajesh Parikh 

(Director & CFO) 

DIN: 08864184 

Place : Mumbai 

Dated : 29h June 2021 

sd/- 

Darshana M Thacker 

(Director) 

DIN : 02003242 

sd/- 
Somya Kasliwal 

(Company Secretary) 

Membership No. ACS 55086   
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Hotel Rugby Limited 

Notes forming part of accounts 
(In Rupees ) 

Note No. Particulars As at As at 
31/03/2021 31/03/2020 

1 Investments 

In Equity Instruments - Others 

Unquoted , At Cost 

(a) The Malad Sahakari Bank Limited 50,000 50,000 

(5000 Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid) 

(b) The Janata Sahakari Bank Limited 1,00,000 1,00,000 

(10000 Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid)) 

(c) Bharat Sahakari Bank Limited 1,00,000 1,00,000 

(4000 Shares of Rs. 25 each, fully paid)) 

(d) The Kalyan Janta Sahakari Bank Limited 1,00,000 1,00,000 

(4000 Shares of Rs. 25 each, fully paid)) 

(e) Dombivli Nagari Sahakari Bank Limited 50,000 50,000 

(1000 Shares of Rs. 50 each, fully paid)) 

Total (a) to (e) 4,00,000 4,00,000 

Less : Provision for dimunition in the value of Investments - - 

Total 4,00,000 4,00,000 

Agreggate value of quoted Investments : : 

Agreggate value of unquoted Investments 4,00,000 4,00,000 

1.1 |The investment in the above equity shares were made for obtaining financial assistance from the 

bankers from time to time by the company. The value of these investments are considered and 

recognised at cost, as the management considers the value of these investments to be realised at cost 
only due to absense of transferbility of these investment in the open market. 

2 Loans 

Loans receivable considered good - Unsecured 

(b) Other loans 

Inter Corporate Deposits 1,89,06,000 1,89,06,000 

Total 1,89,06,000 1,89,06,000         
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3 Investments 

Investments in Mutual Funds - (Growth Funds) 

Quoted, at Cost 

(a) Franklin India Ultra Short Bond Fund 15,175 30,067 

15,175 30,067 

Less : Provision for dimunition in the value of Investments - - 

Total 15,175 30,067 

(i) Agreggate amount of quoted investments 15,175 30,067 

(h) Agreggate amount of market value of quoted 17,379 31,850 

(ii) Agreggate value of unquoted Investments - - 

4 Cash & Cash Equivalents 

(a) Balances with banks 

Balance with Scheduled Banks 1,45,802 35,978 

Fixed Deposit (For Guarantees given to Maharashtra Pollution 

Control Board for Erstwhile Hotel) 10,000 10,000 

1,55,802 45,978 

(b) Cash on hand 21,114 21,114 

Total 1,76,916 67,092 

5 Others Current Assets 

(a) Initial Margin A/c Commodities with: (Refer Note 5.1) 

G@) Anand Rathi Commodities Ltd 30,95,430 30,95,430 

(i) Motilal Oswal Commodities Broker Pvt. Ltd 7,11,246 7,11,246 

Total (a) 38,06,676 38,06,676 

(b) Others 

i) Mobilisation Advance 2,88,25,000 2,88,25,000 

Less: Provison for Doubtful Advances (Refer note 5.2) 

(ii) Accrued Interest on Inter Corporate Deposit 90,62,385 79,42,386 

(iii) Prepaid Expenses 1,462 1,462 

Total (b) 3,78,88,847 3,67 ,68,848 

Total 4,16,95,523 4,05,75,524 

5.2 The mobilisation advance is shown net of provisions/bad debts since considering the prevailing 
market conditions, the recovery from party is not effected more than 50%. 
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6A [Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 

(4) Authorised 

161,10,000 Equity Shares of 10/- each 16,1 1,00,000 16,11,00,000 

(ii) Issued, subscribed _and paid up: 

143,22,800 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 14,32,28,000 14,32,28,000 

Total 14,32,28,000 14,32,28,000 

(b) Terms and conditions 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of 

equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of 

equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 

preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 

shareholders 

(c ) Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares | 

Name of Shareholder 

Smt. Darshaha Mahendra Thacker 3,38,40,520 3,38,40,520} 

No. of shares held 33,84,052 33,84,052 

% of shareholding 23.63% 23.63% 

(d) Reconciliation of number of shares 

No. of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,43,22,800 1,43,22,800 

Add: No. of shares issued during the year - - 

Less: Shares bought back during the year - - 

No. of shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,43,22,800 1,43,22,800 

6B Other Equity 

Capital Reserve 10,00,00,466 10,00,00,466 

Securities Premium 17,70,58,200 17,70,58,200 

General Reserve 85,01,839 85,01,839 

Retained Earnings (Surplus/(Loss) as per Profit & Loss 

Statement) (37,05,04,684) (37,00,40,322 

Total (8,49,44,179) (8,44,79,817)     
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Capital Reserve 

Capital Reserve created on account of merger/ amalgamation. 

The balance will be utilized for issue of fully paid bonus shares 

and as per provisions of the Companies Act,2013. 

  

  

Securities Premium 

Balance of Security premium consist of premium on issue of 

share over its face value. The balance will be utilised for issue 

of fully paid bonus shares , buy-back of its own share as per 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

  

  

General Reserve 

The Company appropriates a portion to General Reserves out of 

the profits voluntarily to meet future contingencies. The said 

reserves is available for payment of dividend to the 

shareholders as per the provisions of the of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

  

  

  

Retained Earnings (Surplus/(Loss) as per Profit & Loss 
Statement) 

Represents excess of surplus after making adjustments if any 

frony/to transfer to other reserves if any 

  

  

  

7 Borrowings 
  

  

Loans from related parties: (Unsecured; from Directors) 
  

  

  

Darshana M. Thacker 2,50,000 2,50,000 

Mahendra R. Thacker 22,40,000 5,00,000 

Total 24,90,000 7,50,000 
  

Note :- "The above loans are interest free and does not have any 

fixed tenure for repayment" 
  

  

8 Other current liabilities 
  

  

  

  

        Other payables 

Outstanding Expenses 4,01,041 4,66,150 

TDS on Professional Fees 18,752 14,350 

Total 4,19,793 4,80,500     
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Hotel Rugby Limited 

Notes forming part of accounts (In Rupees ) 

Year ended Year ended 
Note No Particular leulars 31/03/2021 | 31/03/2020 

9 Other Income 

Interest : on Fixed Deposits 128 564 

on IT Refund 4,800 9,070 

on Inter corporate deposits 11,19,999 11,23,068 

Sundry Credit Balances W/back 55,087 - 

Net gain on sale of investments 3,637 1,57,428 

Total 11,83,651 12,90,130 

10 |Employee benefits expense 

Salaries and wages 1,57,333 - 

11 Other Expenses 

Payment to Auditor: 

Audit Fees 41,000 59,000 

Annual Listing Fees 7,43,400 7,18,386 

General Meeting Fees 1,46,964 

Newpaper and periodicals 1,43,735 1,03,194 

Legal & Professional fees 6,29,416 6,09,953 

SEBI Penalties - 2,61,960 

Stipend 3,24,000 

Bank Charges 242 348 

Computer Expenses 4,248 

Miscellaneous Expenses 12,888 9,142 

Total 15,70,681 22,37,195 

. eo epete . . ’ As at As at 
12 Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of: 31/03/2021 31/03/2020 

12.1 |Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts: 

12.1.1 |Disputed liabilities in respect of: 

Interest and penalty on Service tax for October 2004 to October 

2006 - 23,49,170 

(Part payment made against the above dispute) - 2,34,920     
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It is not practicable to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if 

any, in respect of the above matter pending resolution of the 

legal proceedings. 

12.2. | Bank Guarantee excluding financial guarantees 10,000 10,000 

In respect of Bank Guarantees, the cash outflows, if any, could 

generally occur up the period over which the validity of the 

guarantees extends. The guarantee period is already over. 

123 The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent 

liabilities. 

13. |Commitments 

The Company does not have any commitments at the year end 

14 In view of accounting as well as tax losses, no provision for taxation is considered necessary. 

Therefore reconciliation with accounting profit with tax losses is not applicable 

15 Deferred Tax Assets: 

In accordance with the accounting policy, the deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all 

taxable temporary differences, losses and tax credit to the extent that is probable that taxable profits 

will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, losses and tax credits can 

be utilised. 

15.1 [In absence of convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against 

which such deferred tax assets can be realized, the company has not recognized the deferred tax 

assets in view of continuous losses as the management estimates that the company will not be able 

to recover these losses in near future, as under: 

15.1.1 |On account of deductible temporary differences - - 

15.1.2 |On account of unused tax losses 3,76,82, 183 3,75,23,664 

15.1.3 |On account of unused tax credits - - 

15.2 |The above deferred tax assets will be recognized if and when there is sufficient convincing 

evidence available on the estimated profits to recover the same by adjustments to taxable profits in 

future. 

15.3. |Since no deferred tax assets are recognized in accordance with the IND AS 12, no reconciliation is 
required.       
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16 Earnings per Share 
  

(a) Net Profit/(loss) after tax for the year (used as numerator) (5,44,363) (9,47,065) 

(b) Weighted average No.of equity shares outstanding used as 1,43,22,800 1,43,22,800 

denominator 

(c) Basic earning per equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each (0.0380) (0.0661) 

(d) Diluted earning per share of face value of Rs. 10 each (0.0380) (0.0661)     
  

  

17 Segment Reporting: 
  

In view of there being no turnover in respect of operating activities, segment reporting is not 

applicable 
  

  

17.1 Basis of identifying operating segments: 
  

Operating segments are identified as those components of the Company: 
  

(a) that engage in business activities to earn revenues and incur expenses (including transactions 

with any of the Company’s other components; 
  

(b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors to make 

decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment and (c) for which discrete 

financial information is available 
  

(c) for which discrete financial information is available 
  

  

17.2 Reportable segments: 
  

An operating segment is classified as reportable segment if reported revenue (including inter- 

segment revenue) or absolute amount of result or assets exceed 10% or more of the combined total 

of all the operating segments. Since neither revenue nor results or assets have more than 10% of the 

combined results, the Company has only one reportable segments based on the nature of its 

products and service 
  

  

17.3 The geographical information in respect of revenues from external customers: 
  

(a) attributed to the company’s country of domicile 

(b) attributed to all foreign countries in total from which the company derives revenues 
  

  

17.4 There are no revenues from external customers attributed to an individual foreign country which are 

material. There are no non current assets attributed to any foreign country. 
  

  

17.5 Since there is no turnover, the Company does not have major customers having revenues from 

transactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of its total revenues. 

  

  

17.6   Balances of borrowings, loans and advances given, current assets and current liabilities are taken as   per confirmation by the management.   
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18 | Related party Disclosures 

18.1 | List of related companies / firms 

18.1.1 |Companies / Firms controlled by the directors and their 

relatives 

(a) Jai Thacker's Land Development Pvt. Ltd. 

(b) Crystal Hospitality Services Ltd 

(c) K R Thacker & Others 

18.1.2 |Key Management Personal 

(a) Shri Mahendra R. Thacker - Director and Chief Executive Officer 

(b) Smt. Darshana M Thacker - Director 

(c) Shri Rajesh Parikh - Director and Chief Financial Officer 

(d) Km. Somya Kasliwal - Company Secretary 

18.2 |Related party transactions: 

Borrowings - Current 

(a) Shri Mahendra R. Thacker 

Borrowing during the year 17,40,000 - 

Balance at the year end 22,40,000 5,00,000 

Maximum balance during the year 22,40,000 5,00,000 

(b) Smt. Darshana M Thacker 

Borrowing during the year - - 

Balance at the year end 2,50,000 2,50,000 

Maximum balance during the year 2,50,000 2,50,000 

18.3 | Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. These 

borrowings are interest free. 

18.4 |The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amount owed by related 

parties for which provision has been made for bad debts. 

18.5 | This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the 

related parties and the market in which the related parties operate. 

19 There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education & Protection 
Fund as at March 31, 2021 

20 All the Property, plans and equipment of the company have been sold long back, and there 

are no assets under the management during the year. Therefore, the concept of going concern 

is affected. However, management is looking for avenues for investment, and based on its 

judgement and future planning, the accounts are prepared under the concept of going concern] 

21 In the opinion of the board, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances have a value on realisation in 

the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which these are stated in the balance 

sheet and provisions for all the known liabilities have been made, subject to read with the notes.     
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NS 

RUGE 
22 Financial Instruments: 

|(i) Financial Instruments classification by category | 

(In Rupees) 

(Refer Nota Atfair value | At fair value to ota) caryin 
224 The carrying value and fair value of finacial instruments at | No. to the At At amortised ., | through Other ying Total Fair 

. the end of 31 March 2021 financial cost Cost through Profit Comphrensive Value Value 
Loss 31 March 2021 

statement or Income (OCI) 

(1) ASSETS 

Non-current financial assets 

(i) Investments 1 4,00,000 - - - 4,00,000 4,00,000 

(ii) Loans 2 1,89,06,000 - - - 1,89,06,000| _ 1,89,06,000 

Current financial assets 

(i) Investments 3 15,175 15,175 17,379 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 4 1,76,916 1,76,916 1,76,916 

Total financial Assets 1,94,98,091 J J -| _1,94,98,091| _1,95,00,295 

(2) LIABILITIES 

Non-current financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 7 24,90,000 - - - 24,90,000 24,90,000 

Total financial liabilities 24,90,000 : i : 24,90,000 24,90,000 

(In Rupees) 

{Refer Note At fair value At fair value Total Carryin 
The carrying value and fair value of finacial instruments at | No. to the At amortised .,| through Other YING Total Fair 

22.2 oy At cost through Profit : Value 
the end of 31 March 2020 financial Cost Comphrensive Value 

or Loss 34 March 2020 
statements) Income (OCI) 

(1) ASSETS 

Non-current financial assets 

(1) Investments 1 400,000 - - - 400,000 400,000 

(ii) Loans 2 1,89,06,000 - - - 1,89,06,000] — 1,89,06,000 

Current financial assets 

(1) Investments 3 30,067 30,067 31,850 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 4 67,092 67,092 67,092 

Total financial Assets 1,94,03,159 : : =| 1,94,03,159| 1,94,04,942 

(2) LIABILITIES 

Non-current financial liabilities 

(1) Borrowings 7 7,50,000 - - - 7,50,000 7,50,000 

Total financial liabilities 7,50,000 : : : 7,50,000 7,50,000                       

  

l(a) The carrying amounts of Non - Current investments are considered as Fair Value in absence of avaibility of fair value . 
  

  

(b) The carrying amounts of Current investments and cash and cash equivalents and other current assets are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their 

short-term nature.       

  

{(c)For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values. 
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HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED 

Notes forming part of accounts 

22 Financial Instruments (Contd...:) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

            
  

  

22(ii) Fair Value Measurement 

(i) Fair Value hierarchy 

Level 1 - Quoted Prices (Unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are aobservable for the asset or liability, 

either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from price) 

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 

(ii) The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value : 

As at 31 March 2021 

(in Rupees) 

. Fair value Fair Value measurement using 
Particulars 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Non Current Investments 

Fair value at carrrying cost (Equity 
instruments designated upon initial 
recognition) 4,00,000 - - 4,00,000 

Current Investments 

Fair value at carrrying cost 15,175 - 15,175 - 

As at 31 March 2020 

(in Rupees) 

Particulars Fair value Fair value/measurement using 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Non Current Investments 
Farr value at carrrying cost (Equity 

instruments designated upon initial 

recognition) 4,00,000 4,00,000 

Current Investments 

Fair value at carrrying cost 30,067 - 30,067 -   
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HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED 

Notes forming part of accounts 

22 Financial Instruments (Contd.....): . 
(in Rupees) 

22(iii) Financial risk management As at 31/03/2021 | As at 31/03/2020 

  

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments: 

- credit risk; 

- liquidity risk; and 

- market risk         

  

Risk management framework 
  

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. 

The board of directors has established the processes to ensure that management controls risks through the mechanism of property defined 

framework. 

  

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and 

controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed by the board annually to reflect changes 

in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain 

a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

  

The Company's Audit Committee oversees compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of 

the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal 

Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to 

the Audit Committee. 
  

  

{a) Credit risk 
  

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 

obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and investments in debt securities. 

  

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Company monitor credit risk very closely. The Management 

impact analysis shows credit risk and impact assessment as low. 
  

  

Current Assets 
  

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also 

considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which 

customers operate. Since there are no revneue genrated from operations, there are no major risks. 

  

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The 

management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables 

  

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer/party. However, management also 

considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which 

customers operate. In view ofno operations from its core activites, there are no risks envisaged by the company 
  

The gross carrying amount of trade receivables | | 
  

During the period, the Company has made no write-offs of trade receivables, as it does not have any trade receivables. The Company management 

also pursue all legal option for recovery of dues wherever necessary based on its internal assessment when such a need arise. 

  

A default on a financial asset is when counterparty fails to make payments within 60 days when they fall due. 
  

  

  

  

        Reconciliation of loss allowance provision — Loan and advances 

Balance in the beginning 2,88,25,000 - 

Provisions made during the year - 2,88,25,000 

Balance at the year end 2,88,25,000 2,88,25,000         
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{b) Liquidity risk 
  

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled 

by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have 

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses 

or risking damage to the Company’s reputation 
  

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding to meet obligations 

when due and to close out market positions. 
  

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash 

equivalents on the basis of expected future cash flows. This is generally carried out and monitored through caproate office of the Company in 

accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. These limits vary to take into account requirement, future cash flow and the liquidity in 

which the entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management strategy involves projecting cash flows considering the level of liquid 

assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt 

financing plans. 
  

  

{i) Financing arrangements 
  

The company did not have any financial arrangements during the year from the banks or any other financiers except interest free loan from directors 

  

  

{ii) Maturities of financial liabilities 
    The company does not have any contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. 
  

  

({c) Market risk 
  

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates — will affect the Company’s income or the 

value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within 

acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. 

The Company does not envisage any market risks presently as it does not have any operating activity related to its hotel business after the sell off of 

its fixed assets. 
  

({d) Currency risk 
  

Since the Company does not have any exposure related to forein exchange transactions, there is no currency risk exposure 
  

  

{e ) Sensitivity analysis 
  

Since there is no currency risk exposure, no sentivity analysis can be presented. 
  

(f ) Interest rate risk 
  

The Company’s does not have any interest borrowings. Therefore there is no intrest risk from its borrowings. In respect of loans and advances, the 

rate of interest is fixed in accordance with the provision of the Act based on an arm's length. Therefore there is no intrest rate risk exposure 

  

{g) Exposure to interest rate risk 
  

There is no interest rate risk envisaged by the management as the company does not have such exposure. 
  

{h) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments 
  

In view of no interest risk for any exposure, the sensivity analysis is not presented. 
  

{i) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments 
  

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in 

interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss. 
  

  

  

      

  

  

  

23 The financial assets consisting of non current and current investments, non current loans and advances which constitute less than 50% of 

its total assets, though the income is 100% from the financial assets. Since both the conditions are not fulfilled by the compay for 

registration as a deemed NBFC, provisions as a loan company are not attracted. 

24 Value of imports calculated on C.L.F basis by the company during the financial year 

25 Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year - - 

26 The Covid 19 Pandemic effected globally as well as India causing significant disturbance in economic activities. Management is expecting 

that company will recover the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and the values stated in the financial statements will not be affected 

in near future / long term period. 

27 There are no event having impact on the accounts up to the date of signing these accounts from the end of the financial year. 

28 The previous year figures have been re-grouped/rearranged and / or reclassified wherver considered necessary.           
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HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED 

Working for deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as at 31/03/2021 
  

Particulars 
  

As at 

31 March 2021 

As at 

31 March 2020 
  

  

(a) |Unabsorbed carried forwarded business losses: 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      

Assessment year - 2014-15 47,52,726 47,52,726 

Assessment year - 2015-16 22,49,474 22,49,474 

Assessment year - 2016-17 - - 

Assessment year - 2017-18 2,18,760 2,18,760 

Assessment year - 2018-19 854,012 854,012 

Assessment year - 2019-20 4,86,668 4,86,668 

Assessment year - 2020-21 9,99 227 9,99,227 

Assessment year - 2021-22 5,44,363 - 

Total carried forwarded business losses 1,01,05,230 95,60,867 

Tax on bove @ 25% 25,26,308 23,90,217 

Surcharge @12% 3,03,157 2,86,826 

Add: Cess @ 4% 1,13,179 1,07,082 

Total Deferred tax assets created against business losses = (a) 29,42,643 27,84,124 

(b) |Carried forwarded Capital Losses: 

G) Short Term (Non STT paid) 

Assessment year - 2012-13 3,29,670 3,29,670 

Total short term capital losses 3,29,670 3,29,670 

Tax on bove @ 25% 82,418 82,418 

Surcharge @12% 9,890 9,890 

Add: Cess @ 4% 3,692 3,692 

Deferred tax assets created against short term capital losses 96,000 96,000 

Gi) Long Term (Non STT paid) 

Assessment year - 2013-14 13,36,19,221 13,36,19,221 

Assessment year - 2014-15 1,50,91,029 1,50,91,029 

Total long term capital losses 14,87,10,250 14,87,10,250 

Tax on bove @ 20% 2,97,42,050 2,97,42,050 

Surcharge @12% 35,69,046 35,69,046 

Add: Cess @ 4% 13,32,444 13,32,444 

Deferred tax assets created against Long term capital losses 3,46,43,540 3,46,43,540 

Deferred tax assets created against capital losses = (b) = (i) + (ii) 3,47,39,540 3,47,39,540 

(c) Total deferred tax assets = (atb) 3,76,82,183 3,75,23,664 
  

    The above deferred tax assets have not been recognised in absence of substntial evidence for future profits 
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HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°! MARCH 2021 

Significant accounting policies and other disclosures: 

GENERALINFORMATION: 
HOTEL RUGBY LIMITED (“the Company”), is a public company domiciled in India and was 
incorporated on 16" September 1991 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (now replaced by 
Companies Act 2013) as applicable in India. Its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) of 
India and National Stock Exchange of India (NSE). 
The registered office of the Company is located at 2, Ground floor, 9, Dev Bhuvan, Gazdar Street, Chira 

Bazar, Kalbadevi, Mumbai-— 400002. 

As per the object clause of the Company, it is principally engaged in the business of hotels and restaurants, 
though presently no business activities are going on, after sale of its property, plant and equipment in the 
past. 

BASIS OF PREPARATION: 
Statement of compliance 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate A ffairs pursuant to section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
as amended. 
These financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of 
Directors as per its meeting held on 29" June 2021 

Functional and presentation currency 
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company's functional 
currency. 

Basis of measurement 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. 

Use of estimates and judgements 
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. Actual result may differ from these estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised prospectively. 
Judgments 

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on 
the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in respect of Provision for employee benefits 
which is based on the estimated basis. 
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
material adjustment in the subsequent period financial statements is included in the notes. 
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Measurement of fair values 

Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both 

financial and non- financial assets and liabilities. 

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values, 

based on which the fair value is measured as and when applicable. 

This includes a regular reviews for significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third 

party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the 
company assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these 

valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the 

valuations should be classified. 

Fair values are categorized ina fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used 1n the valuation techniques 

as under: 

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted price included in Level | that are observable for the assets or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (1.e. derived from prices). 

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far 

as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels 

of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same 

level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognizes transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 

period during which the change has occurred. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
Current and non-current classification 

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company's normal 

operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule ITI to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Assets: 
Anassetis classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal 
operating cycle; 

b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
c) itis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
d) itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 

at least twelve months after the reporting date. 

  

  

  

73



Hotel Rugby Limited 30° Annual Report 
      

    

    

  

Liabilities: 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

a) itis expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 
b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
c) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
d) the Company does not have an unconditional nght to defer settlement of the liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting date. Terms ofa liability that could, at the option of the counter 

party, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affectits classification. 

All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in Cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its normal operating cycle as 12 

months for the purpose of Current / Non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

B. Financial Instruments 

i. Financial assets 

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument. 

All financial assets are recognised at fair value on initial recognition. 

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at: 

e amortised cost 
e fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

e fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Company 

changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

Derecognition 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on: 
- financial assets measured at amortised cost; 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost has impaired 

and provisions are made for impairment accordingly. A financial asset is 'credit impaired’ when one or more 

events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the 

following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses: 
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and 
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the 
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 
losses. 
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12 -month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are 
possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less 
than 12 months). 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition 
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that 
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information 
and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including 
forward looking information. 

Measurement of expected credit losses 
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the 
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance 
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet 
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of 
the assets. 

Write-off 
The gross carrying amount ofa financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no 
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not 
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the 
write-off. 

ii. Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, 
they are classified as fair value through profit and loss. 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all 
changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. 

iii. Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
realise the asset and settle the liability stmultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent 
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, 

insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counter party. 
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C. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method (EIR), finance 
charges in respect of assets acquired on finance lease and exchange differences arising on foreign currency 
borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. 

Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temporary investment of related borrowings, 
which are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized / 
inventoried as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. 

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they 
are incurred. 

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life 
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the 
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, 
the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial 
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the 

expected credit losses. 

D. Income tax 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit or loss except to the 
extent that itrelates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 
Current tax 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year and any 
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects 
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, 
related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by 
the reporting date. 
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously. 
Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. 
Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not 
recognized for: 
- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a 
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of 
transaction; 

- Temporary differences related to investment in subsidiary to the extent that the Company is able to control 
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future; and 

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized. The existence of unused tax losses is 
strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent 
losses the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable 
temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available 
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against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets- unrecognized or recognized, are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized/reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer probable 
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized. 
Minimum Alternate Tax ("MAT") credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the 
extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax 
during the specified period. 

E. Cashand cash equivalents 
Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks 
and other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being 
subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash 
equivalents. 

F. Provision and contingent liabilities 
The Company sets up a provision when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event and it will probably requires an outflow of resources to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that arises from past events 
and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past 
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or 
where reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of 
judgment of the management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are 
adjusted to reflect the current management estimate. 

G. Leases 
Leases are accounted as per Ind AS 116 which has become mandatory from April 1, 2019. 
Assets taken on lease are accounted as right-of-use assets and the corresponding lease liability is accounted at 
the lease commencement date. 
Initially the right-of-use asset is measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs 
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying 
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, discounted using the 
Company's incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments 
arising from a change in an index or arate, or a change in the estimate of the guaranteed residual value, or a 
change in the assessment of purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured 
in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right of-use asset, or is recorded 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss ifthe carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 
The right-of-use asset is measured by applying cost model i.e. right-of-use asset at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line 
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method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset 
whichever is earlier. Carrying amount of lease liability is increased by interest on lease liability and reduced 
by lease payments made. Lease payments associated with following leases are recognised as expense on 
straight-line basis: (1) Low value leases; and (11) Leases which are short-term. 
Assets given on lease are classified either as operating lease or as finance lease. A lease is classified as a 
finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying 
asset. Initially asset held under finance lease is recognised in balance sheet and presented as a receivable at an 
amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Finance income is recognised over the lease term, based on a 
pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on Company's net investment in the lease. A lease which is 
not classified as a finance lease is an operating lease. 
The Company recognises lease payments in case of assets given on operating leases as income on a straight- 
line basis. The Company presents underlying assets subject to operating lease in its balance sheet under the 
respective class of asset. 

However, there were no lease transactions during the year. 

Contingent Assets 
Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, these are disclosed in the 
Director's report. 

Revenue recognition 
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume 
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in 
the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. 
Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract 
assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional 
right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms. 
Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there is billings in excess of 
revenues. 
In accordance with Ind AS 37, the Company recognises an onerous contract provision when the unavoidable 
costs of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be received. 
Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The 
Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the 
transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing 
obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation a 
cumulative adjustment is accounted for. 
The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by geography and nature of services. 

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition 
e The Company assesses the products / services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance 
obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine 
the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables 

e Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be 
either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume 
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives. The transaction 

price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes a significant financing 
component. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless itis a 
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payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration 
is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the 
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. 
The Company allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the 
contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations. 

e The company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance 
obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the 
relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract. Where 
standalone selling price is not observable, the Company uses the expected cost plus margin approach to 
allocate the transaction price to each distinct performance obligation. 

e The company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied ata point 
in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits 
as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to 
payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and 
rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. 

e Contract fulfilment costs are generally expensed as incurred except when costs which meet the criteria for 
capitalisation. The assessment of this criteria requires the application of judgement, in particular when 
considering if costs generate or enhance resources to be used to satisfy future performance obligations 

However, there has not been any income from operations during the year and therefore no impact on accounts. 

(ii) Other income 

A. Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest 
rate. 

B. Dividend income is accounted in the period in which the right to receive the same is established. 
C. Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and itis probable that 

the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. 

J. Exceptional items 
An item of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in order to improve an 
understanding of the performance of the company is treated as an exceptional item and the same is disclosed 
in the notes to accounts. 

K. Segment reporting 
There have not been any operations during the year and accordingly segment revenue is not 
applicable. 

L. Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
financial year. 
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Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving 
basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have 
been issued upon conversion ofall dilutive potential equity shares. 

M. Commitments 
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows: 

a) estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for, and; 

b) other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in 
the opinion of management. 

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not 
disclosed to avoid excessive details. 

N. Statement of Cash Flows 
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing 
activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method, adjusting the net profit 
for the effects of: 

i. changes during the period in inventories and operating receivables and payables transactions ofa non- 
cash nature; 

ii. non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign currency gains 
and losses, and undistributed profits of associates; and 

iii. all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows. 

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude 
items which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet. 

QO. Key sources of estimation 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the 
company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of 
the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent 
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of property, plant 
and equipment, Intangible assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, future obligations in respect 
of retirement benefit plans, provision for rectification costs, fair value measurement etc. Difference, if 
any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in which the results are known. 

P. COVID-19 
Based on assessment of the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the business/economic conditions, the 
Company expects to recover the carrying value of its assets. The Company will continue to evaluate the 
pandemic-related uncertainty arising from the on-going secondwave and update its assessment. 

Q. Standard issued but not effective 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing 
standards. 
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The MCA has issued a notification dated 24th March 2021 making changes in the Schedule II with 
effect from Ist April 2021 as applicable to the company, requiring various detailed disclosures, for 
which there will be no major financial effect on the company. 

As per our report of even date. 

For B M Gattani & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

sd/- 
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(Proprietor) 
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For & on behalf of the board of directors 

sd/- sd/- 
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